
abc 
 
 

Agenda 

 

Page 1 

Council 
 

Time and Date 
2.00 pm on Tuesday, 25th February, 2014 
 
Place 
Council Chamber - Council House 
 

 
1. Apologies   

 
2. Minutes of the Meeting held on 14th January 2014  (Pages 5 - 24) 

 
3. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 

 To consider whether to exclude the press and public for the items of private 
business for the reasons shown in the report. 
 

4. Coventry Good Citizen Award   
 

 To be presented by the Lord Mayor and Judge Griffith-Jones, Honorary 
Recorder 
 

5. Correspondence and Announcements of the Lord Mayor   
 

6. Petitions   
 

7. Declarations of Interest   
 

Matters Left for Determination by the City Council/Recommendations for the 
City Council 
 
It is anticipated that the following matters will be referred as 
Recommendations.  In order to allow Members the maximum opportunity to 
acquaint themselves with the proposals, the reports are attached.  The relevant 
Recommendations will be circulated separately. 
 
8. 2014/15 Council Tax Setting Report  (Pages 25 - 32) 
 

 From the Cabinet, 25th February 2014 
 

9. Budget Report 2014/15  (Pages 33 - 94) 
 

 From the Cabinet, 25th February 2014 
 

10. Appointment of Independent Person  (Pages 95 - 98) 
 

 From the Ethics Committee, 20th February 2014 
 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 

Matters from Cabinet, 11th February 2014 
 
11. City Deal - Wave 2 Growth Hub Regional Growth Fund Bid  (Pages 99 - 

108) 
 

12. High Speed Rail (London - West Midlands) Bill  (Pages 109 - 116) 
 

13. Friargate Bridge - Additional Works  (Pages 117 - 138) 
 

Other Business 
 
14. Statements (if any)   

 
Private Business 
 
Matters Left for Determination by the City Council/Recommendations for the 
City Council 
 
15. Friargate Bridge - Additional Works  (Pages 139 - 160) 
 

 From the Cabinet, 11th February 2014 
 
Listing Officer: Colin Knight, Telephone: 024 7683 4001 
 

 

Chris West, Executive Director, Resources, Council House Coventry 
 
Monday, 17 February 2014 
 
Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Carolyn Sinclair/Suzanne Bennett 024 7683 3166/3072 
 
 
Membership: Councillors F Abbott, N Akhtar, M Ali, A Andrews, M Auluck, S Bains, 
L Bigham, J Blundell, K Caan, D Chater, J Clifford, G Crookes (Chair), G Duggins, 
C Fletcher, K Foster, D Galliers, D Gannon, A Gingell, M Hammon, L Harvard, 
P Hetherton, D Howells, J Innes, L Kelly, D Kershaw, T  Khan, A Khan, R Lakha, 
R Lancaster, J Lepoidevin, A Lucas, K Maton, J McNicholas, C Miks, K Mulhall, 
J Mutton, M Mutton, H Noonan (Deputy Chair), J O'Boyle, E Ruane, R Sandy, 
T Sawdon, H S Sehmi, B Singh, D Skinner, T Skipper, H Sweet, K Taylor, R Thay, 
S Thomas, P Townshend, S Walsh, D Welsh and A Williams 
 
 

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms 
 
If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 

OR it you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us. 
 

Carolyn Sinclair/Suzanne Bennett  



Page 3 

024 7683 3166/3072 
 

PLEASE NOTE: 

This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site.  At the start of the meeting, the Lord Mayor will 
confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  The images and 
sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council. 
Generally, the public seating areas are not filmed. 

 However, by entering the meeting room and using the public seating 
area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. If 
you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Governance 
Services Officer at the meeting. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVENTRY 
 

Held on 14th January 2014, in the Council House, Coventry  
 

PRESENT 
 

Lord Mayor (Councillor Crookes) 
 

Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Noonan)  
 

Councillor Abbott 
Councillor Akhtar 
Councillor Ali 
Councillor Andrews 
Councillor Auluck 
Councillor Bains 
Councillor Mrs Bigham 
Councillor Blundell 
Councillor Caan 
Councillor Chater 
Councillor Clifford 
Councillor Duggins 
Councillor Fletcher 
Councillor Foster 
Councillor Galliers 
Councillor Gannon 
Councillor Gingell 
Councillor Hammon 
Councillor Harvard 
Councillor Hetherton 
Councillor Howells 
Councillor Innes 
Councillor Kelly 
Councillor A. Khan 
 

Councillor T. Khan 
Councillor Lakha 
Councillor Lancaster  
Councillor Lepoidevin 
Councillor Mrs Lucas 
Councillor McNicholas 
Councillor Maton 
Councillor Mrs Miks 
Councillor J. Mutton 
Councillor Mrs M. Mutton 
Councillor O'Boyle 
Councillor Ruane 
Councillor Sandy 
Councillor Sawdon 
Councillor Sehmi 
Councillor Singh 
Councillor Skipper 
Councillor Mrs Sweet 
Councillor Taylor 
Councillor Thay 
Councillor Thomas 
Councillor Townshend 
Councillor Walsh  
Councillor Welsh 
 

  
Honorary Alderman  
Present: 
  Mr J Gazey 
 
Apologies: Councillor Kershaw 
  Councillor Mulhall 
  Councillor Skinner  
  Councillor Williams 
  Honorary Alderman Webb 
  
Public Business 
 
109. Minutes 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



 -2- 

 The minutes of Meeting held on 3rd December 2013 were signed as a true record. 
 
110. Exclusion of Press and Public 

 
RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

press and public be excluded from the meeting for the items of business indicated 
below on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of information defined in 
the specified Paragraph(s) of Schedule 12A of the Act as it contains information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) and that in all of the circumstances of the case, 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.  

 
Minute 
No. 
 
132 

 
Subject 
 
Commercial Property Ground Lease Proposals 
 

Relevant Paragraphs(s) 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
 
3      

111. Coventry Good Citizen Award – Mrs Gladys Wheldon 
 

On behalf of the Council, the Lord Mayor and Judge Griffith-Jones presented Mrs 
Gladys Wheldon with the Coventry Good Citizen Award. Her citation read: 

 
“Gladys Wheldon has lived in Stoke Aldermoor for 46 years. She is well-
known, well liked and an approachable member of this community with an 
easy going and warm personality. Her commitment to voluntary work has been 
truly tireless and outstanding in numerous ways, not least in the variety of 
projects she has been involved in, the number of people she has helped and 
amount of time – more than forty years - over which she has demonstrated 
this tireless commitment.  

 
Gladys initially began improving things for the local community with sessions 
she ran at the Community Centre for elderly local residents. It ensured they 
engaged with their peers, the local community and helped counter any sense 
of loneliness or isolation. She has also helped to raise money for day trips for 
less fortunate families to ensure people had something to look forward to.  
 
Her annual Christmas parties are legendary with over 50 children enjoying 
food, entertainment and meeting Father Christmas as a result of her year-long 
fundraising efforts. Testament to her ability to include all ensures that older 
brothers and sisters receive gifts and that parents are catered for. 
 
Gladys embraces all sections of the community which is evident through the 
work she does at the Community and Life Centre where she engages with the 
local Youth Leader, organises the over 60’s club and supports other 
cultures by teaching local Somalian ladies to knit and sew. She not only gave 
these ladies a useful skill, but integrated them into the local community and 
increased their confidence. 

 
Gladys is no fair weather volunteer she will be out in all weathers at any 
time of year at a car boot sale to raise much needed funds.   Gladys deserves 

Page 6



 -3- 

this award for embodying the definition of public spirit and community service, 
and to ensure she has a token of the love and gratitude many have for her for 
all she has done for her city. 
 
Gladys will always help anyone in need, the list of her achievements is 
endless and she is truly deserving of this Good Citizen Award.” 

 
112. Honours List 

 The Lord Mayor congratulated the following Coventry citizens who had been 
included in the recent New Year's Honours List.   
 

- MBE to Penelope Collard, Chairman of Penderels Trust, for her services to 
people with disabilities.   

 
- MBE to Joe Elliott, Chairman of the Trustees of Coventry Transport Museum for 

his services to museums. 
  
- OBE to Sofina Aktar Motin Islam, Headteacher at Stanton Bridge Primary School 

for her services to education. 
 
- OBE to Councillor Mrs Ann Lucas, the Leader of the Council, for her services to 

local government.  
 

In addition, the Lord Mayor congratulated Angela Whelan who had received an OBE 
in the Birthday Honours List last June for services to Education. 
 

The Lord Mayor had written on behalf of the City Council to all the recipients sending 
congratulations  

 
113. Bomb Attacks in Volgograd 
 

The Lord Mayor referred to the recent suicide bombings in Coventry’s twin city of 
Volgograd over the festive period.  2014 is an important year in this relationship as 
Coventry and Volgograd celebrate the 70th anniversary of the twinning link with many 
events planned throughout the year to mark the occasion. 

 
Both the Lord Mayor and the Leader of the Council had written letters of condolence 

to the Mayor of Volgograd.   
 

114. Death of Dr Madeleine Sharpe MBE JP 
 

The Lord Mayor referred to the recent death of Madeleine Sharpe, former Chair of 
the Lord Mayor’s Peace Committee for 25 years until her retirement in 2012. 

 
Madeleine was also a GP in the Cheylesmore area for over 30 years, as well as the 

recipient of the Coventry Prize for Peace and Reconciliation in 2004 and a great supporter 
of medical and scientific aid for citizens of Vietnam and Cambodia.  

 

Page 7



 -4- 

Members of the City Council paid tribute to the work carried out by Madeleine over 
many years and expressed their condolences to her family and friends. 
 
115. Councillor David Kershaw 
 
 The Lord Mayor gave an update on Councillor David Kershaw’s progress following 
his recent illness.  
 
 Members conveyed their continuing best wishes to David and his family. 
 
116. Petitions 
 
 RESOLVED:- 
 

(1) That the following petition be referred to HSBC Bank plc with the City 
Council’s support: 

 
“To urge HSBC to reconsider its decision to close the Earlsdon Street   
branch” - 656 signatures – presented by Councillor Hammon. 
 

(2) That the following petition be referred to the appropriate City Council body: 
 

“Requesting action in respect of dog fouling and general littering in 
Westwood Ward” – 32 signatures – submitted by Councillor Skinner and 
presented by Councillor Hammon in his absence. 

 
117. Declarations of Interest 
 
 The following Members declared Disclosable Pecuniary Interests in the matter 
referred to in Minute 125 below (International Transport Museum) 
 
 Councillor Gannon 
 Councillor Hetherton 
 Councillor McNicholas 
 Councillor Sawdon 
 Councillor Skipper 
 
NOTE: The Members indicated above left the Council Chamber during the discussion and 
voting on this item. 
   
118. Commercial Property – Ground Lease Disposals 
 
 Further to Minute 99/13 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Executive Director, Place, which detailed the work of the Strategic Property Review Team 
in identifying a list of income producing ground lease properties from within the commercial 
portfolio where there was an opportunity to either restructure leases to grow rental income, 
or dispose of the asset and use the capital receipt to pay off debt.  

 
A corresponding private report detailing confidential financial matters was also 

submitted for consideration. 

Page 8



 -5- 

 
The Fundamental Service Review “Strategic Review of Property” A60 required the 

Council to save £3m per annum from its property portfolio by 2016/17. The targets could 
only be achieved by a combination of property solutions including rationalisation of 
operational property, optimisation of the commercial property portfolio and the disposal of 
some property assets.  

 
RESOLVED that the City Council: 
 

(1) Approves the list of properties set out in Appendix 1 of this report for lease 
restructure or freehold disposal, subject to detailed terms being approved 
in accordance with the Council’s constitution and in compliance with 
Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972.      

 
(2) Approves that the proceeds of any disposal be allocated to reduce debt 

servicing costs in accordance with the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, which provides that prudential borrowing should be repaid from 
capital receipts as they are generated.  

 
(3) Approves that the savings realised through debt reduction are allocated 

against the savings targets for the Strategic Review of Property - 
Fundamental Service Review. 

 
       (4) Delegates authority to the Assistant Director - Property Asset Management, 

to approve the terms of the individual lease restructures and freehold 
disposals.     

 
119. Council Plan 2013 
 
 Further to Minute 95/13 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Chief Executive that sought approval of the new Coventry Council Plan. 

 
The previous Council Plan was adopted in 2011 with progress monitored through 

half yearly performance reports. At the meeting of the Cabinet on 9 July 2013 (minute 29/13 
referred) the Cabinet noted that whilst good progress had been made over the last two 
years, there were significant challenges facing the City that should be reflected in a revised 
plan for 2013/14 onwards. The new Plan provided the strategic direction and priorities for 
the Council for the next 10 years and reflected the Council’s aspirations for Coventry. 

 
RESOLVED that the City Council approves the new Council Plan attached as 

Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
120. University of Warwick and Westwood Business Park Congestion Relief 

Scheme 
 
 Further to Minute 90 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Executive Director, Place, that outlined proposals to deliver a scheme to reduce congestion, 
improve bus service reliability and provide improved facilities for pedestrians and cyclists 
around the University of Warwick, Westwood Business Park and the A45. 

 

Page 9



 -6- 

The total package would cost £5.222m and was all externally funded: £1.725m of 
government grant funding from the national ‘Local Pinch Point Fund’, subject to a 
successful outcome of the bidding process; and £3.497m from the University of Warwick 
through planning obligations. This was a partnership scheme between Coventry City 
Council, the University of Warwick and the Department for Transport. To satisfy the grant 
conditions, work would start in January 2014 to enable completion by the middle of 2015.  

 
RESOLVED that the City Council: 

 
(1) Approves the delivery of the University of Warwick and Westwood 

Business Park Congestion Relief Scheme totalling £5.222m as detailed in 

Sections 1 and 2 of the report. 
 

(2) Approves Coventry City Council capital expenditure of £1.725m funded by 

external grant from the Department for Transport. 
 

 (3) Delegates authority to sign legally binding funding agreements with the 

Department for Transport and the University of Warwick, including section 

151 officer sign-off, by the Executive Director, Resources, in consultation 

with the Cabinet Member (Public Services), for the grant funding. 
  

121. Amendments to Terms of Reference for West Midlands Joint Committee  
  
 Further to Minute 97/13 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Executive Director, Place, that recommended that Council approved changes to the terms 
of reference of the West Midlands Joint Committee (WMJC) which had been agreed by the 
Joint Committee, but which required approval by all constituent Districts. Consequently the 
same recommendation was being taken to all District’s Cabinets and Councils.   
 

Cabinet were also being asked to give authority for the Leader to support a proposal 
to the Secretary of States for Transport and Communities and Local Government for 
structural changes to the West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) which the ITA 
intended to submit. The Department for Transport had asked that the ITA demonstrated 
support from all constituent Districts for the proposed structural changes, consequently the 
same recommendation was being taken to all District’s Cabinets and Councils. 

 
Both changes were related and would affect the governance covering transport 

delivery in all Wards of Coventry.  The aim of the changes was to improve the efficiency 
and effectiveness of regional activity and to strengthen transport governance. 

 
There were no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in the 

report, as the proposals only related to governance arrangements at this stage.  However, 
the WMJC and the ITA formed key elements of the governance arrangements through 
which Government devolved funding to the West Midlands and onto each local authority. 

  
RESOLVED that the City Council: 
 
(1) Accepts the amended terms of reference of the West Midlands Joint 
 Committee as set out in Appendix 2 of the report insofar as they relate to 

 executive functions of the Council, and that the Council Solicitor and 

Page 10



 -7- 

Assistant Director Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to take 
any necessary and consequential actions to give effect to this decision. 

 
(2) Authorises the Leader of the Council, in consultation with the Chief 

Executive, to send or sign a letter of support to the relevant Secretary of 
States in connection with the proposed structural changes to the 
Integrated Transport Authority. 

 

122. Changes to the Constitution 
 
 Further to Minute 65/13 of the Cabinet Member (Community Safety and Equalities) 
meeting, the City Council considered a report of the Executive Director, Resources which 
sought approval for significant revisions to the Constitution.  
 

The present Constitution was still based on the Government’s Model Constitution 
which was issued at the same time as the Local Government Act 2000 executive 
arrangements were introduced. Since then, the Constitution has been amended as and 
when necessary but it had not been comprehensively reviewed.  
 

Given the extensive change agenda within both the Council and local government 
generally, it was considered the ideal time to carry out that comprehensive review with the 
following objectives: 
 

• Updating the documents to reflect new practices and procedures including 
updating procurement/contractual requirements and financial thresholds.  

• Removing references, wherever possible, to specific legislation to prevent 
the documents from going out of date as quickly. 

• Rationalising and updating the Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 

• Removing unnecessary documents from the Constitution.  
 

The main changes to the Constitution were set out in Section 2 of the report and are 
summarised as follows:  
 

• The organisation of sections was now clearer and more straightforward. 

• Part 2 (Articles) had been deleted and any sections not already replicated 
elsewhere in the Constitution have been inserted into the relevant Part. 

• New Part 2 (Terms of Reference for Cabinet and Committees and Delegations to 
Officers) with extensive revisions to officer delegations to remove long lists of 
statutes and give more generic delegations. The Scheme has been amended to 
reflect the recent changes to directorates and senior management. 

• New Part 3 (Procedure Rules). These had been updated where needed and 
unnecessary rules removed. In particular, the Rules for Contract and Financial 
Procedure Rules had been extensively revised.  

• New Part 4 (Codes and Protocols). Codes and Protocols which do not need to 
be in the Constitution had been removed.  

• New Part 5 (Members Allowance Scheme), which is the latest approved scheme.  

• New Part 6 (Management Structure) which had been revised to show the new 
Strategic Management Board. 

Page 11



 -8- 

•  Part 8 (Procedural Matters) had been deleted and its provisions included 
elsewhere, where appropriate.  

 
Following further consideration of this issue since the meeting of the Cabinet 

Member (Community Safety and Equalities) on 6th January, 2013, together with 
representations made by Councillors Blundell and Sawdon at the meeting, the Cabinet 
Member recommended that Council also approve the following:- 
  

• The deletion of Recommendation (1) (c) from the meeting of the Cabinet 
Member (Community Safety and Equalities) held on 6th January, 2014 which 
proposed a reduction in the capital and revenue budget virements for decisions 
by Directors from £0.25m to £0.05m. 

 

• The implementation date of the new Constitution being delegated to the 
Assistant Director, Legal & Democratic Services in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member (Community Safety and Equalities) and Shadow Cabinet Member. 

 

• Where there is not enough time for consultation papers to be considered by 
Council or Cabinet, in addition to the Leader, appropriate Cabinet Member and 
appropriate Director, that the appropriate Shadow Cabinet Member be also 
consulted in relation to a response. 

 

• The deletion of the proposal in paragraph 2.3.5 of the report to remove the 
requirement in paragraph 3.2.11 of the Constitution that all private reports must 
be accompanied by a corresponding public report.  

 
RESOLVED that the City Council: 
 

(1) Approves the changes set out in Section 2.2 of the report, including the 
additional changes recommended by the Constitutional Advisory Panel 
and by Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee subject to the following 
amendments: 

 
(a) In paragraph 2.2.7 (final bullet point), the power of the Leader to 

exercise executive decision-making powers in specified circumstances 
be in consultation with the Deputy Leader and/or the Deputy Cabinet 
Member where appropriate. 

  
(b) In paragraph 2.3.2, the Policy Framework consists of the plans policies 

and strategies that are required by law together with:   
 

• the Housing and Homeless Strategy  

• the Council Plan  

• the Emergency Plan  
 

(c) In paragraph 3.6.2 (financial thresholds), for grant income above £0.5m 
up to £2.5m, where time does not permit a formal report to Cabinet or 
to the Cabinet Member, delegated power be given to the appropriate 
director in consultation with the appropriate Cabinet Member and 
relevant Scrutiny Chair.  

Page 12



 -9- 

 
(d) In paragraph 2.1.6, where there is not enough time for Government 

Consultation papers to be considered by Council or Cabinet, in 
addition to the Leader, appropriate Cabinet Member and appropriate 
Director, the appropriate Shadow Cabinet Member be also consulted in 
relation to a response. 

 
(2) Approves the changes set out in Section 2.3 of the report subject to the 

following amendments: 
 

(a) The power to prosecute in connection with matters within the terms of 
reference of Licensing and Regulatory Committee should not be 
extended to allow officers to institute proceedings without the 
consent of the Committee, in line with current constitutional 
requirements. 

 
(b) The terms of reference of the Planning Committee and Scheme of 

Delegation of Officers should be amended to require all proposed 
prosecutions for matters within the terms of reference of the 
Committee to be first approved by the Committee. 

 
(c) The deletion of the proposal in paragraph 2.3.5 of the report to remove 

the requirement in paragraph 3.2.11 of the Constitution that all private 
reports must be accompanied by a corresponding public report.  

 
(3) The Table of Financial Thresholds set out in Appendix 3 to the report be 

amended in accordance with the recommendations of the Cabinet Member. 
 

(4) The Procurement Governance Flowchart attached as Appendix 4 to the 
report be amended to show contracts with an annual value of over £1m 
being referred to "Cabinet" only, rather than to "Cabinet/Cabinet Member 
(dependent on financial thresholds)".  

 
(5) A report on the operation of the revised Constitution be submitted to the 

Constitutional Advisory Panel, Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee and 
Cabinet Member (Community Safety and Equalities), (in that order to allow 
any recommendations to be forwarded to Cabinet Member) six months 
following implementation.  

 
(6) Approves that authority be delegated to the Assistant Director, Legal and 

Democratic Services to make minor amendments to the Constitution in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member (Community Safety and Equalities) 
and the Chair of Scrutiny Co-ordination Committee subject to a report on 
any such changes being submitted to the next available meeting of full 
Council.  

 
(7) Approves that authority to determine the implementation date of the new 

Constitution be delegated to the Assistant Director, Legal and Democratic 
Services, in consultation with the Cabinet Member (Community Safety and 
Equalities) and the Shadow Cabinet Member (Communities Safety and 

Page 13



 -10- 

Equalities) in order to ensure that all the preparatory requirements are 
completed. 

 
123. Increasing Pupil Places Programme 2014 Phase 2: Corpus Christi, Hollyfast, 

Little Heath, Park Hill and Whitley Abbey  
 
 Further to Minute 112/13 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Director of Education and Inclusion which set out proposals for Phase 2 of the Increasing 
Pupil Places Programme 2014. 
 
 The Increasing Pupil Places Programme 2014 involved ten schools.  The first five 
schools were approved by the Cabinet as Phase 1 in June 2013.  These schools were 
Aldermoor Farm Primary School, Broad Heath Primary School, Clifford Bridge Primary 
School, Coundon Primary School and Frederick Bird Primary School.  Approval was now 
sought for the proposals and capital funding of a further five schools under phase 2 of the 
programme, these being Corpus Christi, Hollyfast, Little Heath, Park Hill and Whitley Abbey 
Primary Schools.   
 
 An Official Journal of the European Community (OJEU) tender process was carried 
out between February and May 2013 to select a consultant design team and partnering 
contractor.  Associated Architects (lead consultants) and Wates Construction (partnering 
contractor) had developed the extension proposals in collaboration with key stakeholders.  
Planning applications had been submitted in October 2013 for all five schools.  Enabling 
works would be completed in time for the schools to increase their intake capacity from 
September 2014 and the main construction works completed for January 2015.  The report 
submitted detailed the specific proposals for each of the five schools and, appended to the 
report, were illustrations of the designs for each of the schools. 
 
 It was estimated that the total costs, based on the scheme design proposals, would 
£12,326,157.  This was to be funded by a mixture of existing and future Central 
Government allocations and other grants. 
 

RESOLVED that the City Council: 
 

(1) Approves plans for the extensions and modifications to Corpus Christi, 
Hollyfast, Little Heath, Park Hill and Whitley Abbey Primary Schools in line 
with the proposals included in the report. 

 
(2) Approves the programme of £12,326,157 by the City Council to include 

expenditure for the extensions and modifications to Corpus Christi, 
Hollyfast, Little Heath, Park Hill and Whitley Abbey Primary Schools and 
Park Hill Play Group as set out in Table 5.1.2. of the report. 

 
124. Polling District and Polling Place Review – Update 
 
 Further to Minute 113/13 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Executive Director, Resources, which set out the outcome of a review of parliamentary 
polling places and proposed a revised polling district and polling place scheme for 
Coventry. 
 

Page 14



 -11- 

 The report indicated that Section 18C(1) of the Representation of the People Act 
1983 (RPA 1983) placed a duty on all UK local authorities to review their parliamentary 
polling places within 18 months of a Parliamentary Election.  The Electoral Commission had 
advised that the formal review process must take place between 1st October 2013 and 1st 
February 2015, and no part of the formal review could be carried out before 1st October 
2013.  In view of this advice, the Cabinet Member (Community Safety and Equalities) 
Electoral Arrangements Advisory Panel agreed a timetable for the review.  The notice of the 
review was published on 7th October 2013. 
 
 The annual audit of electors was currently being conducted, with the revised register 
being published on 17th February 2014.  The review needed to be completed in sufficient 
time to allow the revised register to be published using the revised polling districts, and 
allowing adequate time to book polling stations for the local and European parliamentary 
elections in 2014. 
 
 The Appendices to the report set out the Draft Revised Polling District and Polling 
Place Scheme; suggested roads/properties to be moved from one polling district to another; 
provided maps detailing the suggested polling district boundaries with the future proposed 
polling district names for the 18 wards; responses to the consultation; and the Acting 
Returning Officer’s recommendations regarding polling stations together with any 
comments received from the Ward Councillors 
 

Since publication of the report, one of the proposed polling places within Bablake 
Ward had become unavailable (districts Aa and Ac).  The Cabinet Member therefore 
recommended that approval of the polling place for polling districts Aa and Ac, together with 
any further temporary amendments to the scheme, be delegated to the Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader, Opposition Leader and appropriate Ward 
Members. 
 

RESOLVED that the City Council approve the following recommendations: 
 
(1) That the Council approve the revised polling district and polling place 

scheme with the exception of the polling place for polling districts Aa and 
Ac. 
 

(2) That the approval of the polling place for polling districts Aa and Ac, 
together with the approval of any temporary amendments to the scheme 
for the 2014 elections for any further polling places that may become 
unavailable prior to the election, be delegated to the Chief Executive, in 
consultation with the Leader, Deputy Leader, Leader of the Opposition and 
the appropriate Ward Members. 

 
125. International Transport Museum 
 
 Further to Minute 114/13 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Executive Director, Place, which sought approval for the provision of unsecured cash-flow 
support of up to £2m to Culture Coventry for the duration of works, in advance of receipt of 
grants, for the International Transport Museum scheme. 
 
 The International Transport Museum scheme comprised a significant development of 

Page 15



 -12- 

one of Coventry’s key cultural assets, the Coventry Transport Museum.  The scheme would 
include bringing back into economic use the Old Grammar School, one of Coventry’s most 
important historic buildings, which was currently unused and on the English Heritage ‘At 
Risk’ Register. 
 
 It was expected that the project would re-fresh and further energise the cultural offer 
and visitor experience at Coventry Transport Museum, enabling the museum to reflect the 
depth of Coventry’s role in pushing the frontiers of transportation manufacturing, whilst at 
the same time stimulating interest in emerging new technologies.  The development would 
deliver a much-enhanced, ground breaking museum which would build on Coventry’s role 
as a centre of innovation in world transportation, to attract new visitors to the City. 
 
 Subject to award, on 16th April 2013 Cabinet gave approval for the Council to act as 
guarantor for the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) grant contribution for the 
scheme.  ERDF funding of £3.1m and Heritage Lottery Fund grant of £4.63m had been 
secured for the scheme, but the grant could only be claimed retrospectively in phases, on 
evidence of expenditure.  Further to analysis of the grant funding profile and its wider 
business plan, Culture Coventry had therefore requested that the Council provide cash-flow 
support for the scheme to enable its successful delivery.   
 
 Within the current profile for the scheme, Council cash-flow support to Culture 
Coventry would be required from April 2014 at an initial level of £0.25m, rising to a peak of 
£2m in January 2015.  Full reimbursement of the cash-flow support provided would be 
anticipated by June 2015 by the retention of grant payments by the Council to repay the 
cash flow support. 
 

RESOLVED that the City Council: 
 

(1) Approves the provision of unsecured cash-flow support of up to £2m to 
Culture Coventry for the duration of the works, in advance of receipt of 
grants for the International Transport Museum scheme. 

 
(2) Delegates authority to the Executive Director, Place and Executive 

Director, Resources in consultation with the Cabinet Member (Housing and 
Heritage) to approve the profile and timing of cash-flow support to Culture 
Coventry to successfully deliver the development scheme. 

 
126. Coventry and Warwickshire Sub-Regional Joint Committee  
 
 Further to Minute 115/13 of the Cabinet, the City Council considered a report of the 
Chief Executive, which sought approval for the establishment of a Sub-Regional Joint 
Committee for Coventry and Warwickshire. 
 
 Coventry City Council worked closely with a number of other local authorities and 
other organisations to promote the economic growth and prosperity of Coventry.  Local 
economic geography along with Government policy on economic growth, including the 
establishment of the Coventry and Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), had 
led to increased partnership working between the seven local authorities in Coventry and 
Warwickshire along with Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council.  
 

Page 16



 -13- 

 The delivery of a Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal and the future allocation of 
Government local growth funding both require the establishment of formal local government 
arrangements at a sub-regional level.  After consideration of the governance options that 
were available to the sub-region, it was proposed that a sub-regional Joint Committee be 
set up to address economic development, regeneration and strategic planning at a sub-
regional level, with the view towards moving to a sub-regional Economic Prosperity Board 
when this is possible.   
 
 Appendix 1 of the report set out the recommended draft terms of reference for the 
Coventry and Warwickshire Joint Committee and it was proposed that authority be 
delegated to the Leader of the Council to agree any final outstanding details with the other 
members of the Joint Committee.  
 
 It was expected that Local Authorities be represented on the Joint Committee by the 
Leader of the Council.  The draft terms of reference required each council to appoint a 
named substitute elected member.  It was recommended that Coventry should nominate 
the Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise and Employment) to be the Council’s named 
substitute.   
 

RESOLVED that the City Council: 
 

(1) Approves the establishment of Coventry and Warwickshire Joint 
Committee to address economic development, regeneration and strategic 
planning at a sub-regional level. 

 
(2) Approves the draft terms of reference set out in appendix 1 in principle, 

and delegate authority to the Leader of the Council to agree final details 
with the other local authorities on the Joint Committee. 

 
(3) Agrees that there is potential to widen the remit of the Joint Committee 

over time with the agreement of the constituent local authorities. 
 
(4) Approves that the Leader should represent Coventry City Council on the 

Coventry and Warwickshire Joint Committee with the Cabinet Member 
(Business, Enterprise and Employment) as named substitute member. 

 
(5) Endorses the approach of moving towards a sub-regional Economic 

Prosperity Board when this is possible.  
 
127. Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal  
 
 The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Executive which sought endorsement 
of the Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal and approval of the cost sharing proposals for 
local authority partners. 
 
 Coventry and Warwickshire was one of 20 areas that were invited to take part in the 
second wave of City Deals.  The purpose of City Deals was to drive local economic growth 
and jobs with each one a “bespoke” agreement between a local area and central 
Government that reflected the different needs of the local area’s functional economic 
geography. 

Page 17



 -14- 

 
 The Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal (the City Deal) focused on the advanced 
manufacturing and engineering sector and aimed to promote sustained economic growth 
and create jobs in the sub region.  The City Deal would establish a Coventry and 
Warwickshire Business Support Clearing House that would deliver a range of bespoke 
business support services to support local businesses to grow and create local jobs by 
assisting them to invest in skills; supporting innovation through better access to research 
and development; and by supporting them to access both finance and development 
opportunities.  
 
 The Clearing House would be a subsidiary company limited by guarantee of the 
Coventry and Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (CWLEP).  The Clearing House 
Managing Director would report directly to the CWLEP, who would manage the day to day 
operations.  Councils through the Joint Committee would be able to hold the CWLEP to 
account on the outcomes of the Clearing House. The accountable body would be a Local 
Authority given responsibility for the funding used to support the City Deal. 
 
 The expected outcomes of the City Deal included over 15,000 new jobs by 2025 
(including 8,800 in the advanced manufacturing and engineering sector); support for growth 
in 450 companies; and a new motor test track for the automotive sector at Fen End in 
Warwickshire.  The City Deal included £25m of public sector investment and over £67m of 
private sector investment.  
 
 After extensive negotiations the Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal has been 
agreed between central Government and CWLEP; the seven local authorities in Coventry 
and Warwickshire and Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council.  As part of the City Deal 
the eight local authorities will set up a Joint Committee to provide robust governance 
arrangements for the City Deal.   
 
 The proposed local authority financial contribution to the City Deal was a total of 
£1,123,202 made up from contributions from all eight local authorities. Coventry City 
Council’s contribution of £0.48m and Warwickshire County Council’s contribution of £0.53m 
make up the most of the funding, with each of the District Councils contributing to the rest. 
The funding allocation was set out in more detail in appendix 2 to the report. 
 
 RESOLVED that the Council: 
 

(1) Agrees that Coventry City Council should formally endorse the Coventry 
and Warwickshire City Deal set out in Appendix 1. 

 
(2) Approves the cost sharing proposal as recommended by the Chief 

Financial (section 151) Officers of the City Deal local authority partners as 
detailed in the main body of the report and in Appendix 2.  Costs range 
from £1.1m to be met from local authority partners in year 1 with on-going 
costs rising to £3.2m (year 5) which will be met by the CWLEP partners on 
the basis that contributions from private sector partners and grant funding 
being pursued are forthcoming.  

 
(3) Agrees to fund the Council’s share of the estimated costs of City Deal of 

£0.48m to support the year 1 operating costs.  

Page 18



 -15- 

 
(4) Supports the approach of applying to European Union and Single Local 

Growth Fund sources of funding to support the on-going costs for City 
Deal taking into account any match funding requirements. 

 
128. Appointments of the City Council: Annie Bettmann Foundation  
 
 The City Council considered a report of the Executive Director, Resources which 
sought approval for the appointment of an additional trustee for the Annie Bettmann 
Foundation. 
 

The Annie Bettmann Foundation was a charity providing financial help to people in 
the Coventry area who were either starting a business or completing their education with a 
view to starting a business. 
 
  The City Council has sole power to appoint trustees to the Foundation who need not 
be elected members.  A minimum of 4 and maximum of 6 must be appointed. At its Annual 
Meeting on 16 May 2013, the Council appointed 5 trustees (including 3 elected members) 
with a term of office to expire in May 2017. 
 

The Trustees have met and consider it would be helpful to have an additional 
trustee. His Honour Judge Donald Hamilton (now retired) was suggested by the Trustees 
as an additional trustee He has been approached informally and indicated that he is willing 
to serve.  
 

RESOLVED that the City Council appoints His Honour Donald Hamilton (retired) as 
an additional trustee of the Annie Bettmann Foundation (No. 1 and No. 2), with the term of 
office starting with immediate effect and ending at the same time as the other trustees in May 
2017. 
 

129. Question Time  
 
 The following Members answered oral questions put to them by other Members as 
set out below, together with supplementary questions on the same matters: 
 
No Question Asked By Question Put To  Subject Matter 

 1 
 

Councillor Andrews  
 

Councillor A Khan 
 

increase in the cost of Electricity 
bills during the last Labour 
Government  
 

 2 Councillor Blundell Councillor A Khan Whether or not fuel poverty had 
doubled under the last Labour 
Government  
 

 3 
 

Councillor Noonan 
 

Councillor A Khan 
 

How many energy tariffs had 
existed under the last Labour 
Government  
 

 4 Councillor Sawdon Councillor A Khan Councillor Khan’s position on the 

Page 19



 -16- 

 Labour Party proposals to change 
the way energy pricing works  
 

 5 Councillor Taylor Councillor Kelly Enquired as to when a report on 
HIMOs would be available 

    
 6 Councillor Taylor Councillor A Khan Labour’s proposal to introduce 

another Quango in relation to 
energy costs 

  
 

  

 7 Councillor 
Lepoidevin 

Councillor Chater Grangehurst School / Governance 

    
8 Councillor 

Lepoidevin 
Councillor Duggins Ofsted Inspection Childrens 

Services  
 

9 Councillor Blundell Councillor Chater Safeguarding in Schools 
    
10 Councillor Noonan Councillor A Khan Fracking 

 
11 Councillor Hammon Councillor Lancaster Kenilworth Junction – traffic delays 
    
12 Councillor Hammon Councillor Lancaster Tree, Greyfriars Green 

 
13 Councillor Hammon Councillor A Khan Councillor Khan’s position on an 

energy price freeze. 
 

14 Councillor Blundell Councillor Chater Coventry’s share of the Pupil 
Premium 

 
130. Statements by the Leader  
 

The Leader, Councillor Mrs Lucas, made a statement in respect of “The Ricoh 
Arena”. 

 
 The Leader of the Opposition Group, Councillor Blundell, responded to the Leader’s 
Statement. 
 
131. Debate – Energy Market 

 
 Councillor A Khan moved the following Motion which was seconded by Councillor 
Ruane: 
 
“That this Council: 
 

(a)  Believes Britain’s energy market isn’t working for ordinary families and 
businesses and the cost of electricity and gas is crippling their family finances; 
 

Page 20



 -17- 

(b)  regrets that energy bills have risen by almost £300 for families since 2010 and 
businesses say it’s the second biggest cost they face and is concerned that 
when the price of energy increases energy companies pass this on, but when it 
drops consumers don’t see their bills fall; 
 

(c)  notes recent research by Which? estimating that flaws in the market have left 
consumers paying £3.9bn a year over the odds since 2010; 
 

(d)  fully opposes the unfair price rises recently announced by the big energy 
companies including a 10.4% increase in Npower’s dual-fuel bills from 
December, SSE increasing prices by 8.2% from 15th November, British Gas 
increasing their prices by 9.2% on 23rd November and Scottish Power raising 
prices by 8.6% from 6th December; 
 

(e)  notes comments from the Chief Executive of Citizens Advice speaking about the 
SSE increase “The price rise will be a blow for stretched budgets P Many 
households are facing a daily battle to try to make their frozen incomes cover 
mounting energy, food and travel costs. Further increases will push people into 
poverty; 
 

(f)  believes that the increases represent a rip-off and believes that the present 
Government have chosen to defend the big energy companies and have failed to 
stand up for the consumer; 
 

(g)  further welcomes the commitment that the next Labour Government will reset our 
energy market so it works for Britain’s families and businesses, with a new tough 
regulator to stop overcharging.” 

 
An amendment, a copy of which is appended to these minutes, was moved by 

Councillor Hammon, seconded by Councillor Lepoidevin and lost. 
 

RESOLVED that the Motion, detailed above, as proposed by Councillor A Khan 
and seconded by Councillor Ruane, be adopted. 
 
Note: In respect of the above, a recorded vote was required in accordance with 

paragraph 4.1.75 of the City Council's Constitution.  The Councillors voting for and 
against the amendment were as follows: 

 
   For Against     Abstain 

 
Councillor Abbott 

 
Councillor Blundell 

 

Councillor Ali Councillor Foster  
Councillor Akhtar Councillor Hammon  
Councillor Auluck Councillor Noonan  
Councillor Bains Councillor Sawdon  
Councillor Mrs Bigham Councillor Taylor  
Councillor Caan Lord Mayor  
Councillor Chater   
Councillor Clifford   
Councillor Duggins   

Page 21



 -18- 

Councillor Mrs Fletcher   
Councillor Galliers   
Councillor Gannon   
Councillor Gingell   
Councillor Harvard   
Councillor Mrs Hetherton   
Councillor Howells   
Councillor Innes   
Councillor A Khan   
Councillor T Khan   
Councillor Lakha   
Councillor Mrs Lucas   
Councillor Maton   
Councillor Miks   
Councillor J Mutton   
Councillor Mrs M Mutton   
Councillor O’Boyle   
Councillor Ruane   
Councillor Sandy   
Councillor Singh Sehmi   
Councillor Skipper   
Councillor Sweet   
Councillor Thay   
Councillor Thomas   
Councillor Townshend   
Councillor Walsh   
Councillor Welsh   

 
   

Result:   37 for 
                7 against 
                0 abstentions 
 
Private Business 
 
132. Commercial Property Ground Lease Disposals 
 

Further to Minute 118/13 above, the City Council considered a report of the 
Executive Director, Place, which detailed confidential financial matters in relation to the list 
of income producing ground lease properties from within the commercial portfolio where 
there was an opportunity to either restructure leases to grow rental income, or dispose of 
the asset and use the capital receipt to pay off debt.  

 
RESOLVED that the City Council: 
 
(1) Approves the list of properties set out in Appendix 1 of the report for lease 

restructure or freehold disposal, subject to detailed terms being approved 
in accordance with the Council’s constitution and in compliance with 
Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972.      

 

Page 22



 -19- 

(2) Approves that the proceeds of any disposal be allocated to reduce debt 
servicing costs in accordance with the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, which provides that prudential borrowing should be repaid from 
capital receipts as they are generated.  

 
(3) Approves that the savings realised through debt reduction are allocated 

against the savings targets for the Strategic Review of Property – 
Fundamental Service Review. 

 
(4) Delegates authority to the Assistant Director Property Asset Management 

to approve the terms of the individual lease restructures and freehold 
disposals.     

 
 
(Meeting closed at 6.10 pm)  

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

Page 25



 (Gross Expenditure and reserves required to be raised 
for estimated future expenditure);

(Gross Income including reserves to be 
used to meet the Gross Expenditure but excluding Council Tax income);

(Average Council Tax at Band 
D for the City including Parish Precepts).

  
(Parish Precepts);

Page 26



(Council Tax at Band D for the City excluding Parish 
Precepts);

(Council Taxes at 
Band D for the City and Parish).

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



These amounts may be subject to penny rounding when the actual bill is produced

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Agenda Item 9

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



.

Page 40



Government Grant Settlement 

People Department (Children Social Care & 

ABCS) 

Pensions additional current service cost  

Pensions additional past service cost  

LGPS Implications - costs added to 

pensionable pay 

Council Tax and Business Rates Surplus & Tax-

Base Increase 

Asset Management Revenue Account – Debt 

Repayment 

Housing Benefit Administration Grant – Lower 

Contingency Against Loss 

Carbon Reduction Commitment Levy 

Exemption 

Integrated Transport Authority 

Living Wage  

City Deal Clearing House 

Total 

Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Business Rates, 
Economic and Social Value
Discretionary Rate Relief for Sport Clubs’

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



(6
0
8
)

(2
,1
0
2
)

(2
,5
6
5
)

Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014/15 - 2018/19

Expenditure
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Portfolio:

Business, Enterprise & Employment 50,139 61,039 39,137 7,851 2,908

Children & Young People and Education 36,628 12,399 5,800 9,268 9,014

Energy & Environment 1,937 322 26 0 0

Health and Adult Services 2,760 2,389 2,389 2,389 2,389

Housing and Heritage 5,618 912 0 0 0

Public Services 42,988 14,741 10,375 8,822 8,858

Strategic Finance and Resources 9,246 2,111 1,000 1,000 1,000

TOTAL PROGRAMME 149,316 93,913 58,727 29,330 24,169

Allowance for 5% Rescheduling (7,466) 2,397 1,879 1,564 336

PROGRAMME AFTER RESCHEDULING 141,850 96,310 60,606 30,894 24,505

Resources Available to fund the programme 141,850 93,885 60,606 30,894 26,731

Resources in Hand / (Shortfall) 0 (2,425) 0 0 2,226  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 80



CAPITAL PROGRAMME BY CM PORTFOLIO

CABINET MEMBER:  BUSINESS, ENTERPRISE & EMPLOYMENT

CAPITAL SCHEME
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Nuckle 10,574 2,224 0 0 0

Regional Growth Fund (RGF 3, 4 & Wave 2) 8,496 0 0 0 0

Growing Places 6,449 4,370 0 0 0

Coventry Investment Fund (CIF) - Unallocated 5,749 15,000 20,000 5,000 0

Study Inn Loan 5,500 6,000 0 0 0

Kickstart Office 4,528 27,314 16,285 32 90

Far Gosford Street 3,482 755 0 0 0

Property Repairs 2,750 2,750 2,750 2,750 2,750

Canley Regeneration 1,083 25 0 0 0

Coventry &Warks Enterprise and Business Growth 1,082 400 0 0 0

Lythalls Lane (CIF) 335 2,132 33 0 0

New Deal for Communities 111 69 69 69 68

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 50,139 61,039 39,137 7,851 2,908

RESOURCES
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Corporate Resources 9,919 7,274 2,819 2,819 2,818

Prudential Borrowing 16,112 50,446 36,318 5,032 90

Grant 24,037 3,319 0 0 0

Section 106 71 0 0 0 0

TOTAL RESOURCES 50,139 61,039 39,137 7,851 2,908

CABINET MEMBER:  CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & EDUCATION

CAPITAL SCHEME
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

School Expansion Programme (Basic Need Grant) 29,214 5,636 0 435 493

School Condition (Maintenance Grant) 5,007 5,830 2,414 3,988 3,712

Infant School Catering Adaptations 755 0 0 0 0

Devolved Formula Capital 631 568 511 460 414

Early Years 334 0 0 0 0

Broad Park House (Breaks for Disabled Grant) 306 0 0 0 0

Pathways to Care (Support to Foster Carers) 206 190 200 210 220

Suitability/Access 100 100 100 100 100

Leased Equipment 75 75 75 75 75

Broad Spectrum School 0 0 2,500 4,000 4,000

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 36,628 12,399 5,800 9,268 9,014

RESOURCES
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Corporate Resources 14,190 2,390 200 210 220

Grant 22,020 9,816 5,525 8,983 7,962

Leasing 75 75 75 75 75

Section 106 343 118 0 0 757

TOTAL RESOURCES 36,628 12,399 5,800 9,268 9,014
 

Page 81



CABINET MEMBER:  ENERGY & ENVIRONMENT

CAPITAL SCHEME
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Play Areas 1,009 252 0 0 0

Lentons Lane Cemetery 748 70 26 0 0

Tackling Fuel Poverty 162 0 0 0 0

Holbrooks Park 11 0 0 0 0

The Lodge - Canley Crematorium 7 0 0 0 0

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 1,937 322 26 0 0

RESOURCES
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Corporate Resources 11 0 0 0 0

Prudential Borrowing 755 70 26 0 0

Grant 162 0 0 0 0

Section 106 1,009 252 0 0 0

TOTAL RESOURCES 1,937 322 26 0 0

CABINET MEMBER:  HEALTH & ADULT SERVICES

CAPITAL SCHEME
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Disabled Facilities Grants (inc Social Care grant) 2,580 2,389 2,389 2,389 2,389

Recovery Community In Coventry 180 0 0 0 0

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 2,760 2,389 2,389 2,389 2,389

RESOURCES
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Grant 2,760 2,389 2,389 2,389 2,389

TOTAL RESOURCES 2,760 2,389 2,389 2,389 2,389

CABINET MEMBER:  HOUSING & HERITAGE

CAPITAL SCHEME
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

AT7 Centre 2,521 0 0 0 0

Coventry Transport Museum 1,931 912 0 0 0

Siskin Drive 1,073 0 0 0 0

Investment in Sporting Facilities 93 0 0 0 0

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 5,618 912 0 0 0

RESOURCES
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Corporate Resources 93 0 0 0 0

Prudential Borrowing 2,521 0 0 0 0

Grant 3,004 912 0 0 0

TOTAL RESOURCES 5,618 912 0 0 0
 

Page 82



CABINET MEMBER:  PUBLIC SERVICES

CAPITAL SCHEME
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Friargate Bridgedeck 12,303 4,018 174 0 0

Whitley Junction 6,243 0 0 0 0

Highways Maintenance (inc Maintenance Grant) 5,934 5,600 5,600 5,600 5,600

Vehicle & Plant Replacement 4,499 1,452 2,780 1,401 1,437

A4600 Congestion Relief Scheme 3,770 0 0 0 0

Public Realm Phase 2 2,862 0 0 0 0

Integrated Transport Programme 2,139 1,821 1,821 1,821 1,821

South West Coventry Junction Improvement Programme 1,725 0 0 0 0

Cycle Coventry 1,588 0 0 0 0

Whitefriars Housing Estates 1,000 850 0 0 0

Highways S106 925 1,000 0 0 0

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 42,988 14,741 10,375 8,822 8,858

RESOURCES
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Corporate Resources 3,588 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

Prudential Borrowing 4,319 1,316 1,602 1,383 1,227

Grant 33,976 9,289 4,595 4,421 4,421

Leasing 180 136 1,178 18 210

Section 106 925 1,000 0 0 0

TOTAL RESOURCES 42,988 14,741 10,375 8,822 8,858

CABINET MEMBER:  STRATEGIC FINANCE & RESOURCES

CAPITAL SCHEME
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Strategic ICT Projects 6,771 2,111 1,000 1,000 1,000

Super Connectivity 2,475 0 0 0 0

TOTAL APPROVED PROGRAMME 9,246 2,111 1,000 1,000 1,000

RESOURCES
2014/15

£'000

2015/16

£'000

2016/17

£'000

2017/18

£'000

2018/19

£'000

Corporate Resources 2,115 1,111 1,000 1,000 1,000

Prudential Borrowing 4,175 1,000 0 0 0

Grant 2,350 0 0 0 0

Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay 606 0 0 0 0

TOTAL RESOURCES 9,246 2,111 1,000 1,000 1,000
 

 

 Page 83



  

Page 84



Page 85



maximum

  

 

Page 86



 

Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



 t

Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



abc Public report
Ethics Committee

  
Ethics Committee                                                                                              20th February 2014 
Council                                                                                                               18th March 2014 
 
 
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Executive Director, Resources 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
 
Title: 
Appointment of Independent Person  
 
 
Is this a key decision? No 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to appoint at least one independent person whose 
views will be sought when making decisions about allegations that councillors have breached the 
Council's Code of Conduct.  
 
Recommendations: 
 
That Ethics Committee recommends Council appoints Ken Sloan as the Independent Person 
under section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 with immediate effect. 
 
List of Appendices included: 
None 
 
Other useful background papers: 
None 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
No 

 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?  
No 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
Yes 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 95



 

 2 

 
Report title: Appointment of Independent Person. 
 
 
1. Context  
 
1.1 The Localism Act 2011 contains provisions relating to ethical standards, which replaced the 

previous arrangements under the Local Government Act 2000.  
 

1.2 The Act requires councils to have arrangements in place to investigate and make decisions 
on allegations that a councillor has breached the code of conduct. The arrangements to 
make decisions on allegations must include provision for the appointment of one or more 
‘independent person’ through a transparent process, by advertisement and application. A 
Member, Co-opted Member or Officer of the authority or a relative or close friend of such 
person cannot be appointed as an “independent person”. In addition, a person cannot be 
appointed as an “independent person” if at any time during the 5 years before the 
appointment, the person was a Member, Co-opted Member or an Officer of the authority. 
 

1.3 The Council must seek and take into account the views of the independent person’s views 
before reaching a decision about an allegation which it has decided to investigate.  The 
Member against whom a complaint is made may also seek the views of the independent 
person. Whilst the independent person must be consulted, he/she has no vote or binding 
authority in any determination process with regard to a complaint.  
 

1.4 At the Cabinet Member Meeting (Community Safety and Equalities) on 3rd October 2013 
the Assistant Director (Legal and Democratic Services) was authorised to advertise for up 
to three independent persons. Advertisements were placed on the Council’s website in 
November 2013 and four applications were received.  An interview panel was set up 
consisting of the Deputy Leader of the Council, the Chair of Ethics Committee, the Leader 
of the Opposition, the Executive Director Resources and the Corporate Governance & 
Litigation Manager. Three candidates were invited to interview on 21st January 2014 and 
the Panel decided to recommend the appointment of Ken Sloan through this Committee 
and Council on 18th March 2014.  

 
2. Options considered and recommended proposal 

 
2.1 Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 places a duty on councils to appoint at least one 

independent person. This is therefore the only option available to the Council. Section 
28(8)(c) of the Act requires the vacancy for an independent person to be advertised in such 
manner as the authority consider is likely to bring it to the attention of the public.  A person 
cannot be appointed as an independent person unless they have submitted an application 
for the vacancy and their appointment has been approved by a majority of members of the 
authority. 
 

2.2 Section 2.9.1.6 of the Council's Constitution requires any appointment of the independent 
person to be recommended by the Ethics Committee to Full Council. Section 28(8)(iii) of 
the Localism Act 2011 requires the appointment of the independent person to be approved 
by a majority of members of an authority.   

 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 
 None 
 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 
4.1 Should the recommendations be approved the appointment will take immediate effect. 

Page 96



 

 3 

 
5. Comments from Executive Director, Resources 
 
5.1 Financial implications 
 
 The role of Independent Person is voluntary but reasonable expenses will be paid. These 

costs will be met from current budgetary provision.  
 
5.2 Legal implications 
 
 The Council must appoint at least one independent person by section 28 of the Localism 

Act 2011.  
 
6. Other implications 
 None 
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 

priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)? 

 
The appointment of an independent person will contribute to the openness and 
transparency of the Council’s ethical standards arrangements by providing external views 
on complaints against councillors.  

 
6.2 How is risk being managed? 
 

The key risk in relation to this process was that suitable persons would not come forward to 
undertake this role. Once the appointment is accepted, then any risk will be limited to 
conflicts of interest, which should be rare, but if they arise, will need to be determined on an 
individual case by case basis. In the event of a conflict, the Council will need to secure an 
alternative view, which can be achieved through informal sharing arrangements with other 
councils, if required. 

 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 
 

Arrangements for dealing with allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct will comply 
with the Localism Act 2011.    

 
6.4 Equalities/EIA  
 

The recruitment and advertisement process complies with section 28 of the Localism Act 
2011.  

 
6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment 
 None 
 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 
 None  
 

Page 97



 

 4 

Report author:  
 
Name and job title: Helen Lynch, Corporate Governance & Litigation Manager 
 
Directorate: Resources 
 
Tel and email contact: ext 3011, Helen.lynch@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors:     

Gurdip Paddan Governance 
Services Officer 

Resources 6.2.14 7.2.14 

Christine Goodwin Senior Lawyer, 
Corporate 
Governance and 
Litigation Team 

Resources 6.2.14 6.2.14 

     

     

Names of approvers for 
submission: (officers and 
members) 

    

Finance: Neil Chamberlain Finance 
Manager 

Resources 6.2.14 6.2.14 

Legal: Helen Lynch Corporate 
Governance & 
Litigation 
Manager 

Resources 6.2.14 6.2.14 

Director: Chris West Director 
Resources 

Resources 6.2.14 6.2.14 

Councillor Hetherton Chair, Ethics 
Committee 

 6.2.14  

 
 

This report is published on the council's website: 
www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings  
 
 

Page 98



 -1- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at 2.00 pm. on 11
th
 February 2014 

 
Present: 
 
Cabinet Members: Councillor D Chater 

Councillor G Duggins 
Councillor D Gannon 
Councillor A Gingell 
Councillor Kelly 
Councillor R Lancaster 
Councillor E Ruane 
Councillor P Townshend (Chair) 

 
Deputy Cabinet Members: Councillor Caan 
 Councillor Howells 
   
Non-voting Opposition Members:  Councillor Andrews 
  
Other Members: Councillor McNicholas 
  
 

Employees (by Directorate): 
 
Chief Executive’s: M Reeves (Chief Executive), F Collingham, R Nawaz, 

R Tennant, J Venn     

People: Brian Walsh (Executive Director), P Fahy  

Place: M Yardley (Executive Director) C Knight, A Williams 

Resources: C West (Executive Director), B Hastie, H Lynch,          
M Salmon, L Welton     

 

Apologies:        Councillor J Innes, D Kershaw, A Khan, A Lucas  
 
 

Public business 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
124.   City Deal - Wave 2 Growth Hub Regional Growth Fund Bid 
  

The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director, Place, that sought 
approval for the City Council to act as accountable body for Regional Growth 
Funding that aimed to create almost 200 new jobs and 50 placements and support 
160 businesses. 

Council – 25
th 

February 2014 
 

Recommendation from Cabinet 
11

th
 February 2014 

Agenda Item 11

Page 99



 -2- 

 
Coventry and Warwickshire had successfully negotiated a City Deal with Central 
Government that aimed to create 15,000 new jobs by developing the local economy, 
with a particular focus on the Advanced Manufacturing and Engineering sector. 
Elected Members endorsed the City Deal proposals at the meeting of the Council 
held on 14

th
 January 2014 (their minute 127/13 refers). 

 
One of the most important elements of the Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal was 
the establishment of a “Clearing House”, where key business support activities would 
be located in one building. This would make it far easier for businesses to access 
the support that they needed to grow. 
 
The Council had again been successful in bidding for funding on behalf of the 
Coventry and Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (CWLEP), and a total of 
£2.7m of Regional Growth Fund (RGF) money had been secured. This pot of RGF 
money was managed by Lancaster University, and was intended to fund the first 
year of City Deal activities, with a particular focus on the activities of the Clearing 
House. 
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet recommend that Council recognise the funding 
opportunity secured through Wave 2 Business Growth Hubs Funding, and 
authorise the Council to act as guarantor for the Programme. 

 
 

 

(Meeting finished at 2.25 p.m.) 

Page 100



abc 11
Public report

Cabinet Report

  

 

Cabinet 11th February 2014 
Council 25th February 2014 
 
Name of Cabinet Member:  
Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise and Employment) – Councillor L Kelly 
 
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Executive Director, Place 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
All 
 
Title: 
City Deal - Wave 2 Growth Hub Regional Growth Fund Bid 
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
Yes - Regional Growth Fund Programmes affect the City as a whole, and the total expenditure 
involved is in excess of £500,000. 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
Coventry and Warwickshire has successfully negotiated a City Deal with central government 
which aims to create 15,000 new jobs by developing the local economy, with a particular focus 
on the Advanced Manufacturing and Engineering sector. Members endorsed the City Deal 
Proposals at the Council meeting on 14th January 2014. 
 
One of the most important elements of the Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal is the 
establishment of a “Clearing House”, where key business support activities will be located in one 
building. This will make it far easier for businesses to access the support that they need to grow. 
 
The Council has again been successful in bidding for funding on behalf of the Coventry and 
Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (CWLEP), and a total of £2.7m of Regional Growth 
Fund (RGF) money has been secured. This pot of RGF money is managed by Lancaster 
University, and is intended to fund the first year of City Deal activities, with a particular focus on 
the activities of the Clearing House. 
 
This report seeks Cabinet approval for the Council to act as accountable body for this funding, 
which aims to create almost 200 new jobs, create 50 placements and support 160 businesses. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet is requested to recommend that Council: 

 
Recognise the funding opportunity secured through Wave 2 Business Growth Hubs Funding, and 
authorise the Council to act as guarantor for the Programme. 
 

Page 101



 

 

Council are requested to recognise the funding opportunity secured through Wave 2 Business 
Growth Hubs Funding and authorise the Council to act as guarantor for the Programme. 
 
List of Appendices included: 
 
None 
 
Background Papers: 
 
None 
 
Other useful documents: 
 
Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal document 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
 
No 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?  
 
No 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
 
Yes – 25th February 2014  
 

Page 102



 

 

Report title:  
City Deal - Wave 2 Growth Hub Regional Growth Fund Bid 
 
1. Context (or background)  

 
1.1 In 2012, the Government announced that there were would be a second wave of City 

Deals, and Coventry was included in this second wave. City Deals are intended to be a 
transaction between cities and their wider areas and central Government and aim to give 
cities the powers and tools they need to drive local economic growth; unlock projects or 
initiatives that will boost their economies. Coventry City Council, Warwickshire County 
Council, the five Warwickshire districts and neighbouring Hinckley and Bosworth Borough 
Council have all signed up to the proposal, which aims to create 15,000 new jobs by 
developing the local economy, with a particular focus on the Advanced Manufacturing and 
Engineering sector. Members endorsed the City Deal Proposals at the Council meeting 
on 14th January 2014. 

 
1.2 One of the most important features of the Coventry and Warwickshire City Deal is the 

establishment of a “Clearing House” where key business support activities are located in 
one building. The aim is to make it much simpler for businesses to understand the support 
that is available, to build on existing services, and to develop new bespoke activities 
designed to encourage local businesses to grow, develop new products and to create 
new jobs. The City Deal proposes that the Clearing House will be located in Cheylesmore 
House on the edge of Coventry City Centre. 

 
1.3 The Council has again been successful in bidding for funding on behalf of CWLEP. A total 

of £2.7m in grant has been secured, which will be used to support the first year of 
Clearing House activities. The cash comes from the Wave 2 Growth Hubs Programme, 
which is managed by Lancaster University using funding from the Regional Growth Fund 
(RGF). This will allow the following activities to take place during the 2014/15 financial 
year. 

 

• A £1.25m programme of SME grants 

• A specialised Innovation Amplifier programme worth £0.25m, run by Coventry 

University Enterprises. 

• Two UK Trade and Investment (UKTI) Advisors who will work exclusively with 

Coventry and Warwickshire Businesses 

• A pilot Skills for Growth Programme 

• An Innovation Brokerage, which will encourage local SMEs to work with the sub-

region’s innovation assets such as the Manufacturing Technology Centre and MIRA 

(formerly the Motor Industry Research Association). 

• Staffing costs for the Clearing House, including Business Account Managers and 

Project Management Staff. 

• A Customer Records Management system 

• Programme Management funding to cover the Council’s administrative costs  

 
1.4 These activities will produce the following outputs during the 2014-15 financial year: 
 

• 198 new jobs  

• 48 one-year placements in Coventry and Warwickshire-based AME SMEs  

• Provide 160 businesses with at least 12 hours of business support  

• Generate £5.25 million in new private sector investment  

• Successfully refer 300 businesses to nationally funded business support programmes 

Page 103



 

 

2. Options considered and recommended proposal 
 
2.1 Coventry City Council acts as guarantor for this programme which will be delivered in 

partnership with the Chamber of Commerce, Warwickshire County Council and Coventry 
University Enterprises. This approach delivers knowledge, experience and economies of 
scale through the Resources and New Projects team who already manage RGF3, RGF4, 
Growing Places and ERDF. 

 
2.2 An alternative approach to securing this funding would have been for another organisation 

to act as the guarantor for this programme, such as the Chamber of Commerce or 
Warwickshire County Council. However, the City Council is already acting in this role for 
almost £30m in RGF money and has the necessary financial management expertise 
readily available, and Warwickshire County Council have also indicated that they support 
Coventry City Council being the accountable-body. 

  
2.3 Partners could have also chosen not to submit a bid for funding, and sought to finance the 

City Deal and Clearing House from partner resources. The opportunity to secure valuable 
economic development cash to kick start a major new initiative for Coventry and 
Warwickshire was too great an opportunity to be overlooked so this option was also ruled 
out and a bid was submitted. 

 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 

 
3.1 The Jobs Strategy is the Council’s proposal for taking forward the economy of the City in 

the light of the changed circumstances experienced over the last couple of years. This 
additional RGF funding is aligned to delivering the Jobs Strategy and the priorities of the 
CWLEP set out in their 5-year strategy based on the Local Economic Assessment and 
feedback from local businesses which include: 

 

• Creating New Jobs 

• Enterprise Entrepreneurship and Start-Ups 

• Access to Finance, Innovation, Low Carbon 
 

4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 

4.1 If Member approval is given, a funding contract will be completed which will make this 
funding available for Clearing House activities starting from 1st April 2014. The majority of 
these activities will be completed by the end of March 2015, although funding for some 
activities will be available in the first quarter of the following financial year. 

 
5. Comments from Executive Director, Resources 
 
5.1 Finance Implications 

 
5.1.1 All spend proposed within this report is grant funded from RGF including Coventry’s own 

administrative costs, and therefore requires no financial investment from the Council. 
 
5.1.2 The recommendation seeks authorisation for the Council to act as guarantor / 

accountable- body for the RGF grant funds and associated outputs as specified in the 
report, totalling £2.7m. There is some financial risk in the form of grant claw back from 
non-delivery of outputs which, as discussed further in Section 6 of this report, will be 
mitigated by formal Grant Aid Agreements with delivery partners for each aspect of the 
Programme. 
 
 

Page 104



 

 

5.2 HR Implications 
 

5.2.1 There will be a number of staff from the Place Directorate working towards the 
achievement of the goals within this programme and the overall CWLEP Clearing House. 
Provision has been made within the funding bid to cover the additional costs of staff 
based within the City Centre & Development Services Division to programme manage 
and deliver the project. Any new staff will be recruited on fixed term contracts for the 
duration of the programme. 

 
5.3 Legal implications 

 
5.3.1 The Council has the legal ability to act as guarantor under the general power of 

competence under the Localism Act 2012 as it confers power where it is for the benefit of 
the Council, its area or persons resident or present in its area. The projects which will 
benefit Coventry with the creation of jobs within its area do fall within the power under the 
said Act. The Council will act as the accountable body for the RGF funding on the terms 
of the Lancaster University/BIS requirements The Council will be issued with a grant offer 
containing the terms and conditions of funding and the Council will pass on certain of the 
obligations contained in its grant offer from BIS to the grant recipients who receive funding 
from the Council for delivering projects. In the event that back to back obligations are not 
put in place there is a risk that there be grant claw in whole or in part if the grant 
obligations imposed upon the Council are not achieved, as is the case with all 
government grant funding.  

 
5.3.2 The Council will endeavour to have social clauses in its legal agreements with other 

parties for funding to require job creation as a condition of the funding. 
 
6. Other implications 

 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 

priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)? 

 
6.1.1 The Council’s Jobs Strategy highlights the importance of creating jobs which the City 

needs. This City Deal and Clearing House will unlock the provision of jobs across the City 
and sub-region. Coventry's Sustainable Community Strategy sets out the ambitions for "a 
prosperous Coventry with a good choice of jobs and business opportunities for all the 
City’s residents". 
 

6.2 How is risk being managed? 
 
6.2.1 One of the activities which will be complete using this funding will be a programme of 

grants to businesses. The Council has well established procedures for handling grants in 
a way that allows the applicants to achieving their aims whilst minimising the risk to the 
Council.  

 
6.2.2 This risk of claw back will be mitigated by the implementation of strict procedures for the 

programme management which have been developed for our other External funding work 
(RGF3, RGF4, ERDF and Growing places) in partnership with the Resources Directorate 
and have been externally audited by KPMG and Grant Thornton. Close liaison with our 
contacts at the Lancaster University RGF Secretariat will also help to reduce risk. Other 
things to note as part of our risk management in awarding grant include: 

 
(i) A comprehensive scoring process for applications which means that only feasible 

projects which produce real employment benefits are selected for funding; 

Page 105



 

 

 
(ii) Detailed financial checks by the Council's Business Investment Team before 

applications are processed; 
 

(iii) A well-established grants panel that makes decisions on individual grant applications, 
chaired by the City Council and including membership of both the Place and 
Resources Directorates; 

 
(iv) Cash is only paid to businesses in arrears on receipt of adequate evidence that funds 

have been used legitimately under the terms of the grant and is connected to job 
creation activities; and 

 
(v) Established contracting procedures and processes already used for current external 

funded programmes. 
 

6.2.3 The grants will be monitored by the Resources and New Projects team who have a strong 
track record of securing, developing and retaining external funding within Economic 
Development Projects and programmes. 

 
6.2.4 The financial risks in all RGF projects sits with the Council but is predicated on the 

creation of jobs in the private sector and achievement of other performance indicators 
through the activities of the Clearing House. Grant aid agreements with partner 
organisations will be used to pass on these conditions and mitigate the financial risk to the 
Council if these performance indicators are not met. 

 
6.2.5 Government holds a “general power of variation” over RGF funding, as they do with all 

other government funding. This gives them the right to reduce funding or cease a 
programme completely and seek repayment of grants already paid if external funding is 
not being managed to the correct standards, or it does not appear that the employment 
outcomes will be met. In this case, the Council’s funding contract will be with Lancaster 
University rather than directly with government, but this principle will still be in operation. 

 
6.2.6 The Accountable Body Group (established as part of the previous report to Cabinet and 

Council in February 2013, and now renamed External Funding Board) will oversee the 
management of risk of Wave 2 Growth Hubs RGF funding alongside other RGF and 
Growing Places. 

 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 

 
6.3.1 Nothing further to add. 
 
6.4 Equalities / EIA 

 
6.4.1 Although the programme’s focus is on business, close attention has been paid to equality 

and diversity principles. The expectation is that those businesses assisted will generate 
significant employment opportunities. The crucial issue, therefore, is applying equality and 
diversity principles to these opportunities. As part of this process the City Council’s 
Economy & Jobs team will engage with businesses as part of the recruitment process. 

 
6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment 

 
6.5.1 None 

 
 
 

Page 106



 

 

 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 
 
6.6.1 Partner organisations such as the Chamber of Commerce and Coventry University 

Enterprises will receive funding from this programme in order to complete their activities 
which will be passed on using Grant Aid Agreement. It is likely that this funding will allow 
these partners to maintain budgets for existing members of staff, or to allow the 
employment of new members of staff. Therefore it is expected that this will have a positive 
impact on our partner organisations. 

 
 
 
Report author(s): 
 
Name and job title:  
Stephen Weir, Regional Growth Fund Programme Manager 
 
Directorate:  
Place 
 
Tel and email contact:  
024 7683 2036 
stephen.weir@coventry.gov.uk 
 
(All enquiries should be directed to the above person) 
 
Contributor/ 
Approver name 

Title Directorate  Date doc 
sent out 

Date 
response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors: 

David Cockroft Assistant Director, City Centre & 
Development Services 

Place 30/12/13 6/1/14 

Andy Williams Resources & New Projects Manager Place 30/12/13 30/12/13 

Michelle Salmon Governance Services Officer Resources 30/12/13 2/1/14 

Names of approvers: (officers and Members) 

Rosalyn Lilley Senior Solicitor, Legal and Democratic 
Services 

Resources 30/12/13 30/12/13 

Phil Helm Finance Manager, Place  Resources 30/12/13 6/1/14 

Jaz Bilen Human Resources Manager, Place Resources  30/12/13 2/1/14 

Martin Yardley Executive Director Place 30/12/13 6/1/14 

Councillor L Kelly Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise 
and Employment) 

- 30/12/13 6/1/14 

 
This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings 
 
 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



 -1- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at 2.00 pm. on 11
th
 February 2014 

 
Present: 
 
Cabinet Members: Councillor D Chater 

Councillor G Duggins 
Councillor D Gannon 
Councillor A Gingell 
Councillor Kelly 
Councillor R Lancaster 
Councillor E Ruane 
Councillor P Townshend (Chair) 

 
Deputy Cabinet Members: Councillor Caan 
 Councillor Howells 
   
Non-voting Opposition Members:  Councillor Andrews 
  
Other Members: Councillor McNicholas 
  
 

Employees (by Directorate): 
 
Chief Executive’s: M Reeves (Chief Executive), F Collingham, R Nawaz, 

R Tennant, J Venn     

People: Brian Walsh (Executive Director), P Fahy  

Place: M Yardley (Executive Director) C Knight, A Williams 

Resources: C West (Executive Director), B Hastie, H Lynch,          
M Salmon, L Welton     

 

Apologies:        Councillor J Innes, D Kershaw, A Khan, A Lucas  
 
 

Public business 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
125.   High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill 
  

The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director, Place that sought 
approval to formally oppose aspects of the High Speed Rail (London – West 
Midlands) Bill. 

Council – 25
th 

February 2014 
 

Recommendation from Cabinet 
11

th
 February 2014 

Agenda Item 12

Page 109



 -2- 

 
The City Council passed a resolution in June 2013 (minute 27/13 refers) on the 
Government’s commitment to proceed with HS2 and sought to secure the best 
possible outcome for the City.  

 
The Government had since maintained its position and on 25

th
 November 2013 

introduced the High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill (“the Bill”) in the 
House of Commons. The Bill would grant the powers necessary to construct and 
operate Phase 1 of HS2 and further detailed the project, including plans of the route 
and the anticipated environmental and economic impacts which were set out in the 
Environmental Statement (ES) and other accompanying documents.  
 
To secure the best possible outcome for Coventry, the City Council would need to 
formally engage in the Hybrid Bill petitioning process. To do this, the Council was 
required to pass a resolution to formally oppose the Bill in accordance with the 
Section 239 of the Local Government Act (LGA) 1972. Depositing a petition against 
the Bill would allow the Council to make representations and give evidence to the 
House of Commons Select Committee in order to try to secure the best possible 
outcome for the City. Unless the Council passed a resolution to technically oppose 
the Bill, it would not be able to appear before Select Committee.  
 
Resolving to oppose the Bill would not change the City Council’s resolution of June 
2013 on HS2, but would allow it to carry out its intention to secure the best possible 
outcome for the City from HS2. 
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet recommend that, in order to get the best possible 
outcome from HS2 for the City Bill and in accordance with the Section 239 of 
the Local Government Act (LGA) 1972, the Council formally opposes aspects 
of the High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill and in order to do this 
passes the following resolutions: 
 
(1) That in the judgment of the Coventry City Council it is expedient for the 

Council to oppose the High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill 
introduced in the Session of Parliament 2013-14. 

 
(2) That the Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise and Employment), the 

Executive Director, Place and Assistant Director, Legal & Democratic 
Services take all necessary steps to carry the foregoing Resolution into 
effect, that the Common Seal be affixed to any necessary documents 
and that confirmation be given that Sharpe Pritchard (Parliamentary 
Agents) be authorised to sign the Petition of the Council against the Bill. 

 
(Meeting finished at 2.25 p.m.) 

Page 110



abc 
12

Public report
Cabinet

 

 

Cabinet  11 February 2014  
Council  25 February 2014 
 
Name of Cabinet Member:  
Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise and Employment) – Councillor Kelly 
 
Director Approving Submission of the report: 
Executive Director, Place  
 
Ward(s) affected: 
None 
 
Title: 
High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill 
 
 
Is this a key decision? 
No 
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The City Council passed a resolution in June 2013 which noted the Government’s commitment to 
proceed with HS2 and sought to secure the best possible outcome for the City.  
 
The Government has since maintained its position and on 25th November 2013 introduced the 
High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill (“the Bill”) in the House of Commons. The Bill will 
grant the powers necessary to construct and operate phase 1 of HS2 and further details the 
project, including plans of the route and the anticipated environmental and economic impacts 
which are set out in the Environmental Statement (ES) and other accompanying documents.  
 
To secure the best possible outcome for Coventry, the City Council will need to formally engage 
in the Hybrid Bill petitioning process. To do this, the Council is required to pass a resolution to 
formally oppose the Bill in accordance with the Section 239 of the Local Government Act (LGA) 
1972. Depositing a petition against the Bill will allow the Council to make representations and 
give evidence to the House of Commons Select Committee in order to try to secure the best 
possible outcome for the City. Unless the Council passes a resolution to technically oppose the 
Bill, it will not be able to appear before Select Committee.  
 
Resolving to oppose the Bill will not change the City Council’s resolution of June 2013 on HS2, 
but will allow it to carry out its intention to secure the best possible outcome for the City from 
HS2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



 

 

Recommendations: 
 
That Cabinet are requested to recommend that the Council:  
 
(1) In order to get the best possible outcome from HS2 for the City Bill and in accordance with 

the Section 239 of the Local Government Act (LGA) 1972, the Council formally opposes 
aspects of the High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill and in order to do this 
passes the following resolutions: 
 

 RESOLVED–  
 
(1) That in the judgment of the Coventry City Council it is expedient for the Council to 

oppose the High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill introduced in the Session 
of Parliament 2013-14. 

 
(2) That the Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise and Employment), the Executive 

Director, Place and Assistant Director,Legal & Democratic Services take all 
necessary steps to carry the foregoing Resolution into effect, that the Common Seal 
be affixed to any necessary documents and that confirmation be given that Sharpe 
Pritchard (Parliamentary Agents) be authorised to sign the Petition of the Council 
against the Bill. 

 
List of Appendices included: 
 
None 
 
Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Other useful documents: 

High Speed Rail (London - West Midlands) Bill 2013-14 
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2013-14/highspeedraillondonwestmidlands.html 
 
Council Report - High Speed 2 and Coventry - 25 June 2013 
http://internalmoderngov.coventry.gov.uk/documents/s11592/HS2%20Report.pdf 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
 
No 
 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or 
other body?  
 
No 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
 
Yes – 25 February 2014 
 

Page 112



 

 

 
Report title: High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Bill 
 
1. Context (or background) 
 
1.1 On 25th November 2013 the government introduced the published the High Speed Rail 

(London – West Midlands) Bill  (“the Bill”) in Parliament. The Bill deals with phase one 
which provides the route between London Euston and Birmingham Curzon Street including 
a new station near Birmingham Airport. The Government anticipates the Bill will gain royal 
assent in 2015, which will give it parliamentary permission to build the railway and the 
specific powers needed to operate it. Construction would commence in 2017. 
 

1.2 The Hybrid Bill presents the most significant opportunity for Coventry to engage in the 
process and secure measures which will benefit the City. The parliamentary process 
includes Select Committee hearings which will provide the opportunity for the Council to 
petition against the Bill in order to try to gain benefits for the City.  The intended areas of 
petitioning include the following points: 
 

– Petitioning for improvements to the integration and linkage between HS2 and the 
existing HS1 line in order to provide for direct connectivity to Europe from the West 
Midlands; 

– Petitioning for improved provision for local jobs and training arising from the design, 
construction, opperation and maintenance of HS2; 

– Petitioning for improved mitigation arising from distruption caused by construction of 
HS2; 

– Petitioning for changes to the Bill to provide passive provision for line capacity 
upgrades (West Coast Mainline and Coventry-Leamington); 

– Petitioning for improvements to the integration of the proposed ‘People Mover’ facility 
provided as part of the Interchange Station with existing West Coast Mainline 
facilities; and 

– Petitioning for the Select Committee to ask Government for additional investment and 
commitments related to Coventry Station; West Coast Mainline and other rail line 
infrastructure capacity and services; and connectivity to HS2.  

 
1.3 This list of 6 points is a general one at this stage and is not exhaustive.  It may change and 

develop as part of the process of preparing the petitions. 
 

1.4 In accordance with section 239 of the LGA 1972, in order to oppose the Bill a majority of all 
of the City Council’s members must resolve to oppose it.  The Council’s intention to pass a 
resolution to oppose the Bill must be publicised in newspapers circulating in the Council;s 
area and 10 clear days’ notice of the meeting must be given.  This notice must be given in 
addition to any other notification given in respect of a full Council meeting.  
 

1.5 It has been widely reported that the Bill and accompanying documentation exceeds 50,000 
pages.  While the petition itself will be a relatively short document, the representations and 
evidence that will need to be prepared for any Select Committee appearance may be 
lengthy.  As a result of this, the work required in preparing the petition, representations and 
evidence will need to be undertaken with the assistance of Parlimentary Agents, who the 
Council need to engage as part of the process.  The Council’s Parlimentary Agents, Sharpe 
Pritchard, will also assist by advising on parliamentary procedure and tactics. 
 

1.6 The Select Committee might expect to direct petitioners with similar concerns to work 
together to present a combined case and, to this end, it is anticipated that partnership 
working with Warwickshire’s Councils, Centro and other West Midlands Council’s will be 
necessary and beneficial. 

Page 113



 

 

2. Options considered and recommended proposal 
 
2.1 If the City Council does not comply with Section 239 of the LGA 1972, it will not be able to 

petition against the Bill.  
 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 
 
3.1 Consultation on the implications of this report is not required as it does not constitute a 

change in policy.  
 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 
4.1 The Bill has had its First Reading in the House of Commons.  First Reading is a formality 

and the Bill’s next significant stage Bill will be Second Reading when its principle will be 
established.  Once established the principle (essentially a brief description of where the 
railway will begin and end and where any stations, inter-changes and links along the route 
will be located) will not be challengeable by petition.  
 

4.2 Shortly after the Second Reading, which is anticipated to take place in Spring 2014, the 
deadline for submission of petitions will be set.  The Select Committee hearings will then 
take place and petitioners will present their cases to the committee.  Committee stage will 
be followed by Report Stage and Third Reading and the Bill will then pass to the Lords 
where the process will be repeated.  There will be an opportunity for the Council to petition 
against the Bill in the Lords also. The Government hopes that the Bill will get the Royal 
Assent in or around May 2015 which, if achieved, will be much faster than other recent 
Hybrid Bill processes.  This is considered by many (including our parliamentary agents) to 
be an ambitious timetable. 
 

5. Comments from the Executive Director, Resources 
 
5.1 Financial implications 
 
 There are no direct financial implication of the recommendation in this report.  However, as 

previously set out in the June 2013 Council report, it is estimated that technical and legal 
consultancy costs up to the value of £150,000 will be incurred in order to position the 
authority sufficiently to respond to Government HS2 proposals.  The exact timing of costs is 
not known, but it is expected that existing revenue budgets, together with expected cost 
sharing can fund £50,000 of the costs.  The remaining £100,000 will result in a budgetary 
control pressure in Place Directorate.   

 
5.2 Legal implications 
 
 Section 239 of the Local Government Act 1972 imposes a legal requirement on any council 

wishing to either promote or oppose certain types of Bill, including a Hybrid Bill, to first  : 
 

• give notice of its intention to pass a resolution in a local newspaper. This is in addition 
to the duty to give public notice of council meetings; and 

• pass a formal resolution of the Council to promote or oppose the Bill. 
 
Ten clear days' notice of an intention to pass a resolution to oppose a Bill must be given.  If 
a resolution is not passed, then the Council cannot participate in the petitioning process. 
The resolution must be to oppose since the Council will be seeking either amendments to 
the Bill or for improvements outside the Bill.  
 
 

Page 114



 

 

 
6. Other implications 
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 

priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area 
Agreement (or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)? 

 
Engagement in the petitioning process will help Coventry to secure the best possible deal it 
can on the back of HS2 to support improved rail connectivity. Having a good transport 
network in place is essential if the city is to attract investment. Improving rail connectivity to 
Coventry will help to support development proposals such as Friargate as well as open up 
new markets and support local travel to work movements. Encouraging travel by rail will 
also help to address climate change and reduce congestion on the road network. 

 
6.2 How is risk being managed? 
 

Not engaging in the Hybrid Bill process would risk Coventry missing out on potential rail 
investment opportunities. Not securing the best possible deal from projects such as HS2 
would put at risk the City’s ability to attract inward investment. 

 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 
 

Much of the work will be led by existing City Council officers; however additional specialist 
resources such as parliamentary agents will need to be procured in order to assist with the 
preparation of the evidence base, business cases and engagement with consultations and 
the Select Committee. 
 

6.4 Equalities / EIA  
 
An equality impact assessment has not been carried out because the recommendation 
does not constitute a change in service or policy. 

 
6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment 

 
Rail provides an efficient and sustainable way to travel. The enhancement and promotion 
of improved rail services which serve Coventry will make rail travel more attractive and will 
help to reduce congestion, particularly on the strategic road network. This will reduce 
emissions from traffic which can impact on climate change and air quality. 
 

6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 
 
 There will not be any direct impact on partner organisation as a result of this decision. 

Page 115



 

 

Report author(s): 
 
Name and job title:  
Mike Waters, Transportation Manager 
 
Directorate:  
Place 
 
Tel and email contact:  
Tel: 024 7683 1048 mike.waters@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors:     

Colin Knight  Assistant Director – 
Planning, Transport 
and Highways 

Place  02/01/14 02/01/14 

Michelle Salmon Governance 
Services Officer 

Resources 09/01/14 09/01/14 

Councillor McNicholas Lead Member for 
Transport 

- 14/01/14 28/01/14 

Names of approvers for 
submission:  
(officers and Members) 

    

Phil Helm Finance Manager Resources 02/01/14 06/01/14 

Carol Bradford Legal Officer, 
Corporate 
Governance and 
Litigation Team 

Resources 06/01/14 08/01/14 

Martin Yardley Executive Director 
Place 

Place 09/01/14 10/01/14 

Councillor L Kelly Cabinet Member 
(Business, Enterprise 
and Employment) 

- 14/01/14 28/01/14 

 

This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/meetings  
 

Page 116



 -1- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held at 2.00 pm. on 11

th
 February 2014 

 
Present: 
 
Cabinet Members: Councillor D Chater 

Councillor G Duggins 
Councillor D Gannon 
Councillor A Gingell 
Councillor Kelly 
Councillor R Lancaster 
Councillor E Ruane 
Councillor P Townshend (Chair) 

 
Deputy Cabinet Members: Councillor Caan 
 Councillor Howells 
   
Non-voting Opposition Members:  Councillor Andrews 
  
Other Members: Councillor McNicholas 
  
 

Employees (by Directorate): 
 
Chief Executive’s: M Reeves (Chief Executive), F Collingham, R Nawaz, 

R Tennant, J Venn     

People: Brian Walsh (Executive Director), P Fahy  

Place: M Yardley (Executive Director) C Knight, A Williams 

Resources: C West (Executive Director), B Hastie, H Lynch,          
M Salmon, L Welton     

 

Apologies:            Councillor J Innes, D Kershaw, A Khan, A Lucas  
 
 

Public business 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
128. Friargate Bridge – Additional Works    
 

The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director, Place on further funding 
that had been secured from the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) for 
additional works at Friargate Bridge.  

Council – 25
th 

February 2014 
 

Recommendation from Cabinet 
11

th
 February 2014 

Agenda Item 13

Page 117



 -2- 

'Friargate', the proposed commercial development scheme located on approximately 
37 acres of land around Coventry Railway Station, would provide a new commercial 
quarter for the City. With up to 300,000 sqm of new development, of which over 
185,000 sqm would comprise high quality office accommodation, it could create up 
to 13,400 permanent jobs. 
 
The details of the bridge scheme were reported to Cabinet on 18

th
 June 2013 (their 

minute 13/13 refers).  Since then a further £7.2million has been secured from the 
ERDF. The ERDF would be match funded using previously secured £12.7million 
Regional Growth Fund (RGF), a further £0.07million contribution from RGF for 
project management, along with a private contribution from Friargate Coventry LLP. 
The additional ERDF would bring the total investment in public realm around the 
station and Friargate to over £20million. By maximising grant funding opportunities 
the City Council was now able to deliver the following works: 
• Creation of a high quality tunnel beneath Warwick Road to provide a second 

entrance to Coventry station. 
• Re-modelling of Station Square to allow the early (2015) completion of the 

pedestrian boulevard from the front of the station to Greyfriars Green. 
• Contribution to the Pedestrian Boulevard and public realm. 
• Bus priority measures in and around the station to help maintain reliability during 

and after the works. 
 

This award was fantastic news for the City and would significantly enhance the 
Friargate development. The early completion of the Pedestrian Boulevard and 
enhancement to the quality of the public realm would help to attract business and 
ensure the development’s success. It would also kick-start much needed 
improvement to the City’s Railway Station – the fastest growing outside of London.  
A master plan for the Station was being developed by the Council working jointly with 
Centro and the rail industry: the new tunnel under Warwick Road and the works to 
Station Square would provide the first significant steps to achieving this plan.   
 
It was necessary to incur development costs up to June 2014 when the target price 
for the additional work was known, without certainty that the project was affordable 
and that it would therefore proceed.  The estimated spend up to this point (principally 
utilities costs, design fees and project management costs) was £0.744million. If the 
Council chose not to proceed with the additional works, it would not be able to claim 
from ERDF or RGF for the costs incurred to this date.  
 
The Bridge Deck target price was to be originally agreed in December 2013 as 
detailed in the June Cabinet Report, however this had slipped to the end of February 
2014 to enable the Contractor, Costain, to have more certainty regarding the design 
to be priced, which would result in a more accurate target contract price and present 
less risk to the City Council. As a result of this, it was necessary to award Costain 
with an early works instruction for site clearance and mobilisation during February 
2014, to enable them to still meet the programme of substantial completion in March 
2015. Previous Cabinet approval was for a total of £0.7million costs to be spent at 
risk until the target contract price was agreed. To enable the early works to proceed, 
an Early Works Agreement up to the value of £0.350million was required, along with 
approval to spend a further £0.350million project management, design and service 
costs at risk until target cost was agreed, totalling a further £0.7million. This was 
additional to the £0.7million previously agreed for project management, design and 
Early Contractor Involvement costs up to agreement of the target price. 

Page 118



 -3- 

 
The City Council was required to enter into a grant funding agreement for the ERDF 
funding with the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG). In 
order to meet DCLG’s funding programme, the grant funding agreement was 
required to be completed  in January 2014, therefore retrospective approval for 
delegation of authority is requested for the Executive Director, Place, to enter into 
the agreement.  A contribution of the ERDF would be allocated to Friargate LLP, 
who would be providing match funding to deliver the pedestrian boulevard. A “back-
to-back” Grant Aid Agreement (GAA) was required between the City Council and 
Friargate Coventry LLP to execute this funding, with the City Council as accountable 
body. It was standard practice within GAAs to transfer as much risk as possible to 
the successful applicant and project deliverer. 
 
RESOLVED that the Cabinet recommends that the Council: 
 
a) Approve the addition of this Scheme to the Council’s Capital Programme 

for 2013/14 onwards for the construction of the additional work up to 
£7.235million. 

b) Approve the delegation of authority to the Executive Director, Place, in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise and 
Employment) to award the ECI works contract for the additional works.  

c) Approve the delegation of authority of the Executive Director, Place, to 
enter into a Grant Aid Agreement with Friargate Coventry LLP for the 
delivery of the Pedestrian Boulevard. 

d)  Retrospectively approve the delegation of authority of the Executive 
Director, Place, to enter into a Grant Funding Agreement for the European 
Regional Development Fund funding with the Department for Communities 
and Local Government. 

 
 

(Meeting finished at XXXX p.m.) 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



abc Public Report
Cabinet Report

 
 

 

A separate report is submitted in the private part of the agenda in respect of this item, as 
it contains details of financial information required to be kept private in accordance with 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  The grounds for privacy are that it 
contains information relating to the financial and business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). The public interest in maintaining the 
exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 
 
Cabinet 11th February 2014 

Council                                                                                                                25th February 2014 

 

Name of Cabinet Member:  

Cabinet Member (Business, Enterprise and Employment) - Councillor Kelly 

 

Director Approving Submission of the report: 

Executive Director, Place 

 

Ward(s) affected: 

St Michael’s 

 

Title: 

Friargate Bridge - Additional Works  

 

Is this a key decision? 

Yes – although geographically the development site is located within one ward it will have an 
impact on the whole of the City and the costs will be above the financial threshold of £0.5 million. 
 

 

Executive Summary: 

 

'Friargate' is the proposed commercial development scheme located on approximately 37 acres of 
land around Coventry Railway Station. When completed the scheme will provide a new commercial 
quarter for the City with up to 300,000 sqm of new development, of which over 185,000 sqm will 
comprise high quality office accommodation. It could create up to 13,400 permanent jobs. 
 
The details of the bridge scheme were reported to Cabinet on 18th June 2013.  Since then a further 
£7.2million has been secured from the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF).The ERDF 
will be match funded using previously secured £12.7million Regional Growth Fund (RGF), a further 
£0.07million contribution from RGF for project management, along with a private contribution from 
Friargate Coventry LLP. By maximising grant funding opportunities the City Council is now able to 
deliver the following works: 
 

• Creation of a high quality tunnel beneath Warwick Road to provide a second entrance 
to Coventry station. 

Page 121



 

 

• Re-modelling of Station Square to allow the early (2015) completion of the pedestrian 
boulevard from the front of the station to Greyfriars Green. 

• Contribution to the pedestrian boulevard and public realm. 

• Bus priority measures in and around the station to help maintain reliability during and 
after the works. 

 
This award is fantastic news for the city and will significantly enhance the Friargate development.   
The early completion of the pedestrian boulevard and enhancement to the quality of the public 
realm will help to attract business to Friargate and ensure its success.   
 
The works will also kick-start much needed improvement to the city’s railway station – the fastest 
growing outside of London.  A master plan for the station is being developed by the Council 
working jointly with Centro and the rail industry: the new tunnel under Warwick Road and the works 
to Station Square will provide the first significant steps to achieving this plan.  The additional ERDF 
will bring the total investment in public realm around the station and Friargate to well over 
£20million. 
 
To achieve this tight timescale it is proposed to extend the Early Contractor Involvement (ECI) 
arrangement with appointed contractor for the bridge deck, Costain and the City Council's 
appointed design team, Atkins, to develop the scheme and a target contract price for both Warwick 
Road Tunnel and the works to Station Square, along with some further minor access improvement 
works to the site.  This target price will be fixed by June 2014 subject to the cost not exceeding the 
overall £7.2 million programme plus variations allowed under the scheme of delegation.  Any 
further variance beyond this amount would need to be considered by Cabinet and full Council. 
 
It will be necessary to incur development costs up to June 2014 when the target price for the 
additional work is known, without certainty that the project is affordable and that it will therefore 
proceed.  The estimated spend up to this point (principally utilities costs, design fees and project 
management costs) is £0.744million. If the Council chooses not to proceed with the additional 
works, it will not be able to claim from ERDF or RGF for the costs incurred to this date.  
 
The Bridge Deck target price was to be originally agreed in December 2013 as per the June 
Cabinet Report, however this has slipped to the end of February 2014 to enable the Contractor to 
have more certainty regarding the design to be priced, which will result in a more accurate target 
contract price and present less risk to the City Council. As a result of this, it is necessary to award 
Costain with an early works instruction for site clearance and mobilisation during February, to 
enable them to still meet the programme of substantial completion in March 2015. The previous 
Cabinet Approval was for a total of £0.7million costs to be spent at risk until the target contract 
price was agreed. To enable the early works to proceed an Early Works Agreement up to the value 
of £0.350million is required, along with approval to spend a further £0.350million project 
management, design and service costs at risk until target cost is agreed, totalling a further 
£0.7million. This is additional to the £0.7million previously agreed for project management, design 
and Early Contractor Involvement costs up to agreement of the target price. 
 
The City Council is required to enter into a grant funding agreement for the ERDF funding with the 
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG). In order to meet DCLG’s funding 
programme, the grant funding agreement was required to be completed  in January 2014, therefore 
retrospective approval for delegation of authority is requested for the Executive Director, Place to 
enter into the agreement.  A contribution of the ERDF will be allocated to Friargate LLP, who will be 
providing match funding to deliver the pedestrian boulevard. A “back-to-back” Grant Aid Agreement 
(GAA) is required between the City Council and Friargate Coventry LLP to execute this funding, 
with the City Council as accountable body. It is standard practice within GAAs to transfer as much 
risk as possible to the successful applicant and project deliverer. 
 

Page 122



 

 

Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet are requested to: 
 

1. Note the funding award by European Regional Development Fund for £7.235 million for 
additional works to Friargate Bridge. 

2. Approve project management and design costs of £0.744million will be incurred at risk 
up until June 2014 when contracts are planned to be signed for additional works. 

3. Approve the Early Works Agreement for the Bridge Deck and project management and 
design costs up to February 2014 for £0.7million to enable site clearance and 
mobilisation prior to target contract price agreement. 

4. Authorise the City Council to act as guarantor for this additional funding, and provide 
delegated authority for the Executive Director, Place to enter into a Grant Aid 
Agreement with Friargate Coventry LLP in order to fund their element of the additional 
works 

5. Retrospectively approve the delegation of authority of the Executive Director, Place to 
enter into a Grant Funding Agreement for the ERDF funding with the Department for 
Communities and Local Government. 

 
6. Recommend that Council: 

 
a) Approves the addition of this scheme to the Council’s capital programme for 

2013/14 onwards for the construction of the additional work up to £7.235million. 
b) Approve the delegation of authority to the Executive Director, Place in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member (Business Enterprise & Employment) to 
award the ECI works contract for the additional works.  

c) Approve the delegation of authority of the Executive Director, Place to enter into a 
Grant Aid Agreement with Friargate Coventry LLP for the delivery of the 
pedestrian boulevard. 

d)  Retrospectively approve the delegation of authority of the Executive Director, 
Place to enter into a Grant Funding Agreement for the ERDF funding with the 
Department for Communities and Local Government. 

 
Council are requested to approve the recommendations detailed in 6 (a), 6 (b), 6 (c) and 6 (d) 
above. 
 
List of Appendices included: 
 

Appendix A – Plan of proposed overview of Friargate Bridge and additional works 
Appendix B – Plan of proposed Warwick Road ‘tunnel’. 
Appendix C – Plan of proposed Station Square. 
Appendix D – Project Delivery Plan 
Appendix E – Project delivery structure for additional works 
 
Background papers: 
 
None 
 
Other useful documents: 
 
Cabinet Report: Friargate Bridge – June 18th 2013 
Cabinet Report: Whitley Junction - Road Improvements - August 13th 2013 
 
These documents can be obtained from the Council's website www.coventry.gov.uk 
 

Page 123



 

 

Has it been or will it be considered by Scrutiny?  
 

No 

 
Has it been or will it be considered by any other Council Committee, Advisory Panel or other 
body?  
 
No 
 
Will this report go to Council?  
 
Yes – 25th February 2014 

Page 124



 

 

Report title: 
Friargate Bridge – Additional Works 
 
1. Context (or background) 
 
1.1 The redevelopment of the land and buildings adjacent to the Coventry's West Coast 

Mainline Railway Station to provide a new commercial quarter for the city together with 
improved connectivity between the station and the city centre has been a long term 
aspiration of the Council. This vision has been supported and incorporated into planning 
policy. 

 
1.2 'Friargate' is located on approximately 37 acres of land around Coventry Railway Station. 

When completed the scheme will provide a new commercial quarter for the City of up to 
300,000 sqm of new development, of which over 185,000 sqm will comprise high quality 
office accommodation. There will, in addition, be provision for retail, hotel and leisure uses 
along with residential. It has the potential to create up to 13,400 jobs. 

 
1.3 Friargate is a fundamental part of the future economic growth, job creation and physical 

regeneration of Coventry and the region over the next 10-15 years.  It is an essential 
element of the plans to regenerate the city centre and complements the ‘City Centre South’ 
retail development proposals.  Outline permission was granted on July 21st 2011 with 
reserved matters approved for highways and access being granted by the Planning 
Committee on September 12th 2013, and a further reserved matters application to go before 
Planning Committee on 6th February, 2014. 

 
1.4 The success of the development depends on the integration of the site with the city centre. 

This was covered in detail in the Cabinet report of 18th June 2013. It also depends on the 
connectivity provided by the railway station to London, the rest of the UK and Europe. 

 
1.5 To ensure the station can fulfil this role in the future, the City Council has commissioned (in 

partnership with Centro) a master plan for the station. Working with the rail industry, bus 
operators, an exciting vision for the future is emerging. The main element of this plan is the 
expansion of a major new entrance and provision of a transport interchange.   

 
1.6 An opportunity arose to bid for additional ERDF using the RGF grant already secured for 

the bridge deck as match funding. In December 2013 the Council was awarded an 
additional £7.235million to support the Friargate project. As the ERDF will be matched by 
RGF, all funding is required to be spent by June 2015. 

 
1.7 In addition to the bridge deck, the ERDF will fund: 
 

• Friargate Boulevard, the pedestrian route that will lead from the bridge to the front of 
Coventry railway station. The additional ERDF is on top of private match from Friargate 
Coventry LLP and will enable the delivery of the boulevard to be brought forward to 
complete the link at the same time as the other additional works. Further details of the 
Boulevard can be seen in the reserved matters application approved by the Planning 
Committee on January 9th 2014 (RMM/2013/2014). 

 

• Improvements to the station forecourt, to facilitate better rail/bus interchange and 
pedestrian access for commuters, linking to the Boulevard and route into the city 
centre. Coventry railway station has seen the greatest increase in rail passenger users 
amongst the UK’s cities with 30 per cent growth in the past five years  
(See Appendix C).  

 

Page 125



 

 

• Warwick Road Tunnel, which will connect the railway station and the Friargate site to 
the new opposite side of Warwick Road, allowing better access to the ERDF funded 
NUCKLE bay platform when it is completed, the Central Six retail park, and important 
walking routes into the residential areas further out of the city centre. The tunnel will be 
6 m wide and at the same level as the ground either side of Warwick Road. It will be 
finished in high quality materials and will form part of the new Warwick Road entrance 
to the station. (See Appendix B). 

 

• Bus priority measures in and around the site to improve bus journey times. These 
works are essential to maintaining the quality of the bus/rail interchange at the railway 
station. . These works were approved in August 2013 in the Whitley Junction Cabinet 
Report as part of a package of enabling works to be delivered to minimise disruption to 
travel during the delivery of a number of major works in the city during 2014 and 2015, 
subject to ERDF funding. 

 

• An overview plan of the proposed works at Friargate Bridge and additional works can 
be found in Appendix A. 

 
1.8 These additional works will provide a major enhancement to what is already a 

transformational scheme. The improvement to connectivity by all modes of transport will 
enhance the ability of Friargate to create jobs and regenerate the city centre.    

 

2. Options considered and recommended proposal 

 
2.1 The scope of the works is fixed having been set out in the ERDF bid document. However, a 

major challenge is how to ensure this money, along with the finance for the bridge deck, is 
spent by June 2015.    

 
2.2  An exercise was undertaken for the bridge deck which concluded that only an Early 

Contractor Involvement arrangement could meet the tight deadline. This entails procuring a 
contractor early to work with the Council and its appointed design team to develop the 
scheme and a target price. The options considered therefore, were whether to extend the 
existing ECI contract under the Highways Agency Asset Support Framework with Costain 
who are working on the bridge deck, or whether to procure a new contract and let the 
additional works as a separate contract. The original tender exercise under the Framework 
and the contract with Costain included provision for additional works if funding became 
available, subject to their costs being within agreed parameters. 

 
2.3 Timescales are extremely tight and going through a procurement process would risk the 

delivery date, therefore it is proposed to award a proportion of the additional works to 
Costain which is permissible under the contract framework. The close proximity of the sites 
means there would be co-ordination issues having two contracts working so closely 
together such as traffic management and health and safety.  

 
2.4 The contractor, design team and City Council staff are co-located. This integrated team 

approach will deliver value for money and ensure, crucially, that the project is delivered on 
time. 

 
2.5 The team will develop a detailed design and a target cost by June 2014 for the additional 

works.  The target cost will be based on an agreed schedule of rates and will be subject to a 
'pain/gain' mechanism whereby the contractor and the council will share the benefits or 
costs of any variance to the target price.  This incentivises the contractor and the client to 
look for ways of saving costs on the project. 

 

Page 126



 

 

2.6 The Council’s Direct Labour Organisation (DLO) are to deliver some of the bus priority 
measures, including improvements to Junction 4, 5 and 7.  

 
2.7 In terms of statutory processes, the tunnel under Warwick Road is permitted development. 

The works to Station Square will be the subject of a further reserved matter application. The 
new highways layout in Station Square requires a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) which the 
City Council are intending to advertise mid-March. Any representations will be reported to 
the Cabinet Member for Public Services. 

 
2.8 It should be noted that in terms of traffic management, the construction of the tunnel has 

been considered and Warwick Road can be kept open to 2 way traffic at all times. This is 
important given the need is to maintain access to the station, Central Six retail park and 
King Henry VIII school whilst Warwick Road is closed at the ring road. 

 
2.9 To further mitigate this risk there has been early engagement with stakeholders which is 

described in section 3.2 below. 
 
2.10 Friargate Bridge additional works are part of a series of projects aimed at regenerating this 

part of the city. To ensure consistency in terms of delivery and specification comprehensive 
governance structure, as shown in Appendix D, has been established.  The strategic 
Friargate Board includes the Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment 
and the Executive Director for Place.  There is a specific project board for Friargate Bridge 
whose role will be expanded to include the additional works; this is chaired by the Assistant 
Director of Planning & Transport & Highways (see project delivery structure Appendix E) 

 
2.11 It is proposed that the Executive Director, Place is authorised, in collaboration with the 

Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment, to enter into a contract with the 
successful contractor to deliver the additional works subject to the target price being within 
the £7.235million programme plus any variations allowed under the scheme of delegations.   
Any further variance beyond this amount would need to be considered by Cabinet and full 
Council.   

 
3. Results of consultation undertaken 
 
3.1 The Friargate masterplan proposals were the subject of considerable consultation as part of 

the planning process.   As a result of the discussions at planning committee the Friargate 
Liaison Group was created where the developers and appropriate council officers have met 
regularly with local residents to advise them of progress and issues arising from the 
scheme. The Liaison Group has been advised of the European Regional Development 
Fund proposal. 

 
3.2 For the additional works, there has been early engagement with a number of stakeholders 

including: 
  

• Friargate Liaison Group 

• Standard Life (owners of Central 6) 

• Network Rail 

• Virgin Trains 

• Stagecoach 

• Travel De-Courcey 

• National Express 

• King Henry VIII School 
 

3.3 The purpose of the early engagement has been to explain the proposals, the need for the 
development, provide reassurance regarding temporary traffic management arrangements 

Page 127



 

 

and to establish points of contact for ongoing communication.  The project team have 
developed a communications plan which sets out how consultation and communications will 
be undertaken throughout the project. 

 
4. Timetable for implementing this decision 
 
4.1 The project delivery plan in Appendix E sets out the implementation timetable. 
 

5. Comments from Director of Finance and Legal Services 
 
5.1 Finance 
 
5.1.1 Once the design has been undertaken for additional works the Council will work with 

Costain to identify a target price with greater certainty.  The price for the bridge deck is 
expected to be known by February 2014, and the remaining works by June 2014.  Should 
funding be required over and above the level of grant awarded, it is proposed that some of 
the smaller schemes such as station access improvements will be de-scoped to ensure the 
priority works are delivered, which are principally the bridge deck, Warwick Road pedestrian 
tunnel and the station forecourt.  

 
5.1.2 Revenue costs are expected to be minimal with any costs being met by existing budgets or 

revenue income from advertising on the bridge deck. 
 

5.1.3 Works for bus priority measures to be carried out by the DLO will be undertaken prior to 
Warwick Road in March 2014 for the bridge deck works to commence proper, therefore is 
not subject to any further formal target cost agreement. Works for bus priority measures to 
be carried out by Costain will also be delivered within the same time constraints and are 
subject to an Early Works Agreement. 
 

5.1.4 There are potential abortive costs of up to £0.744million for project management and design 
which may be incurred if the projects do not proceed to contract. Abortive costs will only be 
incurred if we opt not to appoint a contractor and before any formal contract is signed. A 
contract is likely to be signed with the preferred contractor during June 2014 for additional 
works, after which point we are contractually obliged and there is no opportunity to 
withdraw. Note that the at risk costs are additional to the £0.7million at risk costs previously 
reported in the Friargate Bridge Cabinet report with regards to Target Price Agreement with 
the Contractor for the Bridge Deck. 
 

5.1.5 In the original Friargate Bridge Cabinet Report £0.7million of spend at risk was approved up 
to target price agreement in December 2013. As the target price will now be agreed in 
February 2014 a further £0.7million is required to cover and Early Works Agreement with 
Costain, and includes project management and design costs up to the end of February 
2014. 
 

5.1.6 Should the project not proceed for any reason therefore, the overall potential abortive costs 
including the original £0.7million, additional £0.7million for early works agreement and 
project management and design, and £0.744million at risk costs for additional works would 
be up to £2.144million, funding for which would need to be sought. 

 
5.2 Legal implications 

 
5.2.1 The Council will act as the accountable body for the ERDF projects on the terms of the EU 

and DCLG requirements. The Council will be issued with a grant offer containing terms and 
conditions. For the Boulevard project, the terms and conditions will be devolved across to 
the private sector developer Friargate Coventry LLP in a Grant Aid Agreement. These will 

Page 128



 

 

ensure appropriate conditions and obligations which are imposed upon the Council are 
passed to Friargate Coventry. The Council has power to act as guarantor under Section 1 of 
the Localism Act 2011. 

 
5.2.2 The Council has the power to regulate the flow of traffic and to install pedestrian crossings 

through the 1984 Road Traffic Regulation Act. As part of the works, the City Council is also 
required to obtain Stopping Up Orders in exercise of its powers under section 14 of the 
Highways Act 1980. 

 
5.2.3 The Council has not secured its own planning consent for the bridge works but will rely and 

carry out the works under the outline and reserved matters consent that Friargate has for 
the development. Friargate have lead on the discharge of the reserved matters supported 
by the Council under the collaboration agreement. The City Council will secure its own 
planning consent for the station forecourt works, and Warwick Road tunnel will be permitted 
development. 

 
5.2.4 Any public works carried out that are part of the public realm and are over the EU 

thresholds will be tendered under the Public Works Contract Regulations 2006. The use of 
the Highway Agency's framework does comply with 2006 regulations. 

 
5.2.5 The station forecourt and Warwick   Road tunnel will be subject to Network Rail legal 

agreement through the Network Rail Basic Asset Protection Agreement and other governing 
rail industry processes. 

 
5.2.6 As part of the wider access improvements to the Friargate site, a land transfer will be 

sought on Manor House Drive, which will be subject to adoption and a stopping up order. 
 

6. Other implications 
 
6.1 How will this contribute to achievement of the Council's key objectives / corporate 

priorities (corporate plan/scorecard) / organisational blueprint / Local Area Agreement 
(or Coventry Sustainable Community Strategy)? 

 

 The delivery of the Friargate project will help achieve many of the priority themes of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy and objectives within the Councils Corporate Plan. These 
include:    

 

• A prosperous Coventry with a good choice of jobs and business opportunities 
for all the city’s residents - by providing significant opportunities for existing and new 
business to locate into the predominate office development providing them a quality 
environment which will provide them with the profile to develop and expand their 
business 
 

• A safer and more confident Coventry- by designing out crime within the new 
development, removing the subways and bringing more life and activity to the areas of 
the scheme over a longer period of the day 

 

• Making Coventry’s streets, neighbourhoods, parks and open spaces attractive 
and enjoyable places to be - by improving and extending Greyfriars Green, providing 
new high quality public spaces and routes through the development and creating a new 
predominantly commercial neighbourhood in which the city can be proud 

 

• A good choice of housing to meet the needs and aspirations of the people of 
Coventry- by providing a range of city centre living opportunities taking advantages of 
its key sustainable transport location 

Page 129



 

 

 

• Making places and services easily accessible for Coventry people – by in a 
physical sense making the scheme area including a new route to the railway station 
and buildings constructed around it more accessible to those with a disability. Also 
proving opportunities for new and improved services and activities to locate in the area 
increasing the opportunities for the people of Coventry and the region 

 

• A creative, active and vibrant Coventry - by providing a new business district for the 
City which will bring an increase to the number of people who work, live, use and play 
in the area improving the visually and economic environment of the area 

 

• Improving Coventry’s environment and tackling climate change – by creating a 
sustainable business location around a transport interchange and delivering highly 
resource efficient business premises. Additionally the expansion of green space in the 
city centre will help reduce the heat trapped in the city and increase biodiversity. 

 
6.2 How is risk being managed? 
 
6.2.1 To mitigate the risk there is a comprehensive and accountable governance structure in 

place managed within the overall Friargate programme to ensure correct procedures are 
being followed and that the programme is maintained.  A risk workshop has been held to 
identify the main risks and associated mitigation measures which have been outlined in the 
report.  The principal risks to the project are cost, time (we lose funding if the all project 
costs aren’t defrayed by June 2015) and challenge of the statutory processes.  

 

6.2.2 The financial risk associated with the ERDF sits with the Council. However the risk of claw 
back by DCLG and/or the EU is minimal so long as the expenditure is defrayed against 
eligible activity and in the permitted timeframe. This risk will be mitigated by the 
implementation of strict procedures for the project management of ERDF-funded works and 
ensuring that the risks for the two outside projects are devolved appropriately to the partner 
organisations. We will maintain close liaison with our monitoring officer in DCLG, who are 
also managing the RGF funding contract on behalf of BIS. 

 
6.2.3 The Council has a good track record for maintenance and achieving significant financial 

controls and well established procedures for handling public funds and these will be applied 
to the ERDF projects in order to ensure that the best possible value is achieved for the EU’s 
investment in the schemes. Therefore the view of officers is that risk of claw-back for each 
scheme is minimal. 

 
6.2.4 Friargate Coventry LLP will enter into a “back-to-back” Grant Aid Agreement (GAA) with the 

City Council as accountable body. It is standard practice within GAAs to transfer as much 
risk as possible to the successful applicant and project deliverer. 

 
6.3 What is the impact on the organisation? 
 
6.3.1 This has already been addressed in the report for the Friargate development. 
 

6.4 Equalities / EIA  
 
6.4.1 Under the Equality Act 2010 the provision of public highway and regulation of traffic are 

services to which equality must be considered. Access Development and disability groups 
have been consulted regarding the scheme and will be engaged throughout the design and 
build process. Contractors bidding for the construction work must demonstrate their 
approach to involving small firms, ethnic minority businesses, social enterprises and third 
sector suppliers within the supply chain, and also how they will support the education and 

Page 130



 

 

training of young people. Local people will be engaged throughout the project and 
appropriate consideration given to protected characteristics. 

 
 
6.5 Implications for  (or impact on) the environment 
 

6.5.1 The Friargate scheme is a development located in a highly sustainable location with its 
unrivalled accessibility adjacent to the West Coast main line railway station, bus routes and 
the city centre. The intention of the developer is to develop the office accommodation to 
meet the Breeam excellent environmental standards, helping to reduce its occupier's carbon 
footprint. 

 
6.6 Implications for partner organisations? 
 
6.6.1 The impact on partner organisations will continue to be reviewed.   
 

Page 131



 

 

Report author(s): 
 
Name and job title:  
Colin Knight, Assistant Director, Planning Transport and Highways 
 
Directorate:   
Place 
 
Tel and email contact: 
024 7683 4001 
colin.knight@coventry.gov.uk 
 
Enquiries should be directed to the above person. 
 

Contributor/approver 
name 

Title Directorate or 
organisation 

Date doc 
sent out 

Date response 
received or 
approved 

Contributors:     

Paul Boulton Group Manager, 
Traffic and 
Transportation 

Place 20/01/14 20/01/14 

Andy Williams  Resources and 
New Projects 
Manager 

Place 20/01/14 20/01/14 

Jane Murphy Strategic 
Finance 
Manager 

Resources 20/01/14 20/01/14 

Michelle Salmon Governance 
Services Officer 

Resources 21/01/14 22/01/14 

Names of approvers for 
submission:  
(officers and Members) 

    

Rosalyn Lilley Senior Solicitor Resources 20/01/14 20/01/14 

Martin Yardley Executive 
Director, Place  

Place 21/01/14 21/01/14 

Mick Burn Procurement 
Manager 

Resources 20/01/14 20/01/14 

Councillor L Kelly Cabinet Member 
(Business, 
Enterprise and 
Employment) 

- 20/01/14 22/01/14 

Councillor R Lancaster Cabinet Member 
(Public 
Services) 

- 20/01/14 22/01/14 

 

This report is published on the council's website: www.coventry.gov.uk/councilmeetings  

Page 132



 
 

 

Appendix A 
Friargate Bridge Additional Works Summary 
 

 
 

P
age 133



 

 

Appendix B 
Proposed Warwick Road ‘Tunnel’ 
 
 

 

P
age 134



 

 

Appendix C Proposed Station Forecourt 
 

 
 

P
age 135



 
 

 

Appendix D 

Project Delivery Plan 

Key milestones/deliverables Timescales 

RGF Final Grant Offer May 2013 

Full Council Approval – Bridge Deck June 2013 

Appointment of Designer July 2013 

Appointment of ECI Contractor August 2013 

Friargate RM Planning Consent (1 of 2) September 2013 

Decision of structural form of bridge deck September 2013 

Approval of Traffic Regulation Orders and road space 
booking confirmed November 2013 

ERDF Final Grant Offer December 2013 

Completion preliminary design January 2014 

Gross Max issue full design package for public realm 
and landscaping for pricing January 2014 

Appoint Project Teams for Warwick Road Station 
Access and Station Forecourt January 2014 

ERDF Funding Contract Sign Off January 2014 

Agree target price February 2014 

Friargate RM Planning Consent (2 of 2) February 2014 

Cabinet Approval – Additional ERDF Works February 2014 

Bridge Deck Site Clearance and compound set up February 2014 

Advertise Temporary Traffic Orders of Bridge Deck February 2014 

ERDF Grant Aid Agreement Sign Off between CCC and 
Friargate Coventry LLP February 2014 

Completion of junction improvements – bus priority 
schemes March 2014 

Bridge Deck start on site March 2014 

Approval Stopping Up Orders March 2014 

Completion Bridge Deck detailed design April 2014 

Agree utilities diversions with statutory undertakers, 
issue payment of C4/C5 detailed estimates April 2014 

Place order for steel beams/long lead in time materials April 2014 

Complete preliminary design for Warwick Road Tunnel April 2014 

Complete preliminary design Station Forecourt May 2014 

Agree target price Warwick Road Tunnel and Station 
Forecourt June 2014 

Planning Consent Station Forecourt July 2014 

Complete detailed design Station Forecourt July 2014 

Start works on site Station forecourt August 2014 

Pedestrian Boulevard start on site September 2014 

Complete detailed design Warwick Road Tunnel September 2014 

Warwick Road tunnel Network Rail Approval October 2014 

Start works on site Warwick Road Tunnel October 2014 

Warwick Road reopens March 2015 

Warwick Road Tunnel Complete May 2015 

Works complete Station Forecourt June 2015 

Works complete Pedestrian Boulevard June 2015 

Page 136



Appendix E 
Project Delivery Structure  
 
 

 

 

P
age 137



 

 

 

P
age 138



Agenda Item 15

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 14th January 2014
	8 2014/15 Council Tax Setting Report
	9 Budget Report 2014/15
	10 Appointment of Independent Person
	11 City Deal - Wave 2 Growth Hub Regional Growth Fund Bid
	City Deal - Wave 2 Growth Hubs RGF

	12 High Speed Rail (London - West Midlands) Bill
	High Speed Rail (London to West Midlands) Bill

	13 Friargate Bridge - Additional Works
	Friargate Bridge - Additional Works - PUBLIC

	15 Friargate Bridge - Additional Works
	Friargate Bridge - Additional Works - PRIVATE


